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Roanoke County Public Schools
5937 Cove Road
Roanoke, VA 24019

November 15, 2010

.To the Honorable Chairman and Members of the School Board, and the Citizens of the
County of Roanoke, Vlrgmla

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of
the Roanoke County Public Schools for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. State law
requires that every general-purpose local govermment publish within six months of the
close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements. Roanoke County
Public Schools (School System) is a component unit of the County of Roanoke, Virginia
{County), which is a general-purpose local government. This report has been prepared by
the Department of Budget and Finance in accordance with the standards of financial
reporting as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Virginia (APA).

The CAFR was prepared with an emphasis on full disclosure of the financial activities of
the School System. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive
framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of
internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any
material misstatements.

The auditing firm of KPMG LLP, a firm of independent certified public accountants, has
issued an unqualified opinion on Roanoke County Public Schools’ basic financial
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, contained in this report. The
independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent
auditors’ report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the School System

Roanoke County Public Schools is the 17" largest of 132 school systems in the
Commonwealth of Virginia. The County of Roanoke is located in the southwestern part of




. the state and is the suburban hub of the Roanoke Valley, with a provisional population of
91,011' and a Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) population of 300,399. lLocated in the
largest urban area west of Richmond, the School System is the largest employer in
. Roanoke County. The School Board consists of five members elected to four-year terms
who serve the citizens of Roanoke County.

The School System provides a broad spectrum of general, special, gifted, career and
technical education opportunities for 14,474 students between the ages of 3 and 21 at
seventeen elementary schools, five middle schools, five high schools, and one specialty
center,

The School System was selected as one of the “Best 100 Communities for Music
Education in America” by the NAMM Foundation. This récognition demonstrates the
School System’s commitment to quality music education despite the financial pressures on
fine arts programs throughout the country.

The School System was one of only 15 divisions in Virginia that qualified for the Virginia
Board of Education’s Excellence Award this year under the Virginia Index of Performance
(VIP) program. The VIP program was established to recognize schools and school
divisions that exceed minimum state and federal accountability standards and includes
rigorous criteria designed to challenge students to ever-higher levels of leaming and
achievement. In addition, three schools earned the coveted Governor’s Award for
Educational Excellence.

In 2009, the Virginia School Boards Association (VSBA) certified Roanoke County Public
Schools as a “Green School Division” for the implementation of specific environmental
policies and practical actions that reduce the carbon emissions generated by both the local
school division and the broader community.

The School Board is required to submit an adopted budget to the County by April 1 of each
year for the fiscal year beginning July 1. The County adopts the School System budget on
an annual basis at the fund level. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the
School System’s financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund, function
(e.g. instruction, nutrition, textbooks), and department {e.g. transportation, media services,
personnel) for management purposes. The School Board must seek approval from the
County Board of Supervisors to transfer funds from one fund to another. However, the
School Board may transfer resources within funds as they see fit.

Local Economy
Fiscal year 2010 represented the most challenging economic time since the Great

Depression. Unemployment rose to 6.3%” as of June 30, 2010 from 4.6% in 2009, and
though it compares favorably with the State average of 7.0%, economic conditions

! Population source: VA Stats, Weldon Cooper Center, Charlottesville, VA
2 Virginia Employment Commission statistics




continue to worsen throughout the nation and many of the County’s major revenue sources
continue to decline.

We are fortunate that our economic indicators are more favorable compared to some of the
neighboring localities and to the State but they remain formidable chalienges for Roanoke
County; not only in the delivery of local government services, but also in maintaining our
traditionally high standard of living and quality of life.

Along with the local, state, and national economic struggles, the School System is also
experiencing declining student enrollment which negatively impacts the level of state
funding. For the past two years, the number of graduating seniors has exceeded the
number of incoming kindergarten students by 152-176 students. Indications are that this
may continue for the next several years and seems to reflect lower birth rates in the
community. The enrollment decline has been buffered to some extent by the enrollment of
a significant number of students who had previously been enrolled in private schools and
due to economic challenges, parents are finding a need to return their students to public
schools.

- .From an infrastructure standpoint, the School System operates 28 school buildings with an
average age of 52 years. The School Board has been diligently financing major
renovations of the schools and is currently renovating three elementary schools and one
high school as well as building a replacement elementary school. Despite the harsh
economic times, the School Board has made a financial commitment to address the
infrastructure needs in a steady and methodical manner and, accordingly, was able to take
advantage of competitive construction bids in the past year resulting in lower overall costs
to the citizens.

Economists generally agree that the national recession started in December 2007 but there
are differences of opinions on the duration expected. Considering that there is a traditional
18-24 month lag between changes in general economic conditions and local government
revenue collections, County revenues will most likely not return to pre-recession levels for
some time. While Roanoke County and the Roanoke Valley have a diverse economic base
that has been historically insulated from extreme expansions and contractions of the
national economy, the impacts of higher unemployment, decreased business investment
and activity, declining consumer confidence, and the instability of the stock market have
initiated declines in the governmental revenue sources throughout the Roanoke region.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The School System annually updates a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). This CIP serves
as a planning tool for efficient, effective, and equitable distribution of public
improvements throughout the School System. The CIP represents a balance between finite
resources and an ever-increasing number of competing school projects. This balance was
achieved using the priorities and objectives established by the School Board.




- The School System has been purposefully establishing and increasing dedicated funding
streams for ongoing and growing capital needs. The school bus replacement schedule,
based on age and condition of the bus fleet, necessitates the replacement of ten school
buses per year. The annual budget includes $775,000 earmarked specifically for this
purpose which allows the School Board to pay cash for the bus purchases each year rather
than borrowing funds and incurring the additional financing charges.

Additionally, the School Board implemented a laptop computer initiative seven years ago
to provide a laptop computer to every student in grades 9 through 12. The School Board
had provided the grades 9 through 12 laptop program for eight years without incurring any
debt. However, with the budget pressures at the national, state, and local levels, the
program was scaled back for the 2009-10 school year with take home laptops provided for
students in grades 10 through 12 only and laptops on carts provided in grade 9 classrooms.

Relevant Financial Policies

The School Board has an adopted year end balance policy that allocates the balance at the
end of a fiscal year from excess revenues and/or unspent expenditures to capital projects.
Most of the 28 school buildings in operation were built prior to 1970 and need capital
improvements based on their age and the growth in student population since the schools
were originally built. In order to fund the School System commitment to upgrading the
facilities, the new policy allocates two-thirds of the year end balance to Major capital
projects listed on the School Capital Improvement Plan and one-third to Minor capital
projects (other projects identified and prioritized with costs less than $500,000). This
policy was adopted in conjunction with the County of Roancke and enables the School
System to ensure continued funding for nceded capital improvements.

In addition, the School Board and County Board of Supervisors adopted a revenue sharing
agreement in 2010 that identifies the methodology for allocating revenues between the
local government and the school system. New incremental revenues are combined from
both entities and used to address salary and benefit increases for all employees, jointly
funded programs (including the capital financing plan), and then split equally to fund
remaining school and county budgetary needs. The methodology has been used in practice
- for many years but was formally adopted in 2010 in response to the significant revenue
challenges facing the School Board.

Major Initiatives

Technology Initiative: The School System completed the eighth year of a technology
initiative rollout providing a laptop computer to high school students in grades 10 through
12. The laptop computers allow flexible access to educational resources and online classes
and arc integrated into the daily classroom lessons while incorporating technology
education into all subject areas. The School System also invested heavily in providing
interactive white board technology throughout the School System with an emphasis on




clementary classrooms. Additionally, each classroom has been equipped with an
interactive white board at the four schools under renovation this year.

Standards of Learning: The General Assembly and the Board of Education of the
Commonweaith of Virginia believe that the fundamental goal of the public schools must be
to enable each student to develop the skills that are necessary for success in school and
preparation for life in the years beyond. The current educational objectives are known as
the Standards of Learning (SOL’s). Based on results from the Spring 2010 testing
window, Roanoke County met or exceeded the state average on all 34 SOL tests
administered. Al of our schools also met the state requirements for full state accreditation
for the 2010-11 school year based on their 2009-10 SOL performance.

Capital Improvement Plan: The School Board and the County continue to place a major
emphasis on the capital needs in the School System. In March 2005, the School Board
adopted a list of capital projects, at a total cost of $55 million, to be funded under Phase 3
of the School Capital Improvement Plan. The funding for this phase will come from both
the Major Capital Reserve created with the year end balance policy adopted by the School
Board in 2005 and allocations from the County government. The School System began
construction on major renovations at three elementary schools and one high school this
_year, as well as the construction of a new replacement elementary school. All five projects
‘are expected to be completed in early 2011.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Roanoke
County Public Schools for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This was the
ninth consecutive year that the School System has received this prestigious national award.

In addition, the Association of School Business Officials International {ASBO) awarded a
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting to the School System for its CAFR for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, This certificate was also awarded for the ninth
consecutive year. The Certificate of Excellence program is similar to the GFOA
Certificate of Achievement program and is an international award recognizing excellence
in the preparation and issuance of school system financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement or a Certificate of Excellence, a
school system must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report, whose content conforms to the standards of both programs. The
CAFR must also satisfy the standards of both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

The GFOA Certificate of Achievement and the ASBO Certificate of Excellence are valid
for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to meet the
requirements of the GFOA Certificate of Achievement and ASBO Certificate of




Excellence programs, and we are submitting it to both associations to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to the personnel in the Budget and Finance
Office for their dedication to assuring the financial integrity of the School System and the
preparation of this report. Appreciation is also extended to the School Board and the
administration, whose continuing leadership and support is vital to the financial health of
the School System.

Respectfully submitted,
Lotraine S. Lange, Ed. D. 8 Penny A. Hodge, CPA, RSBO
Superintendent - Assistant Superintendent of Finance
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Roanoke County
Public Schools, Virginia

For its Comprehensive Annual
_ Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Foded
June 30, 2009

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial.
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Assacialion of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retiremmen
systems whase comprehensive anoua) financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial repotiing.

President

By

Executive Director
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KPMG LLP

Suite 1710

10 8. Jefferson Street
Roanoke, VA 24011-1331

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Members of the School Board
County of Roanoke, Virginia:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Roanoke County Public Schools (the School System),
a component unit of the County of Roancke, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which
collectively comprise the School System’s basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the School System’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of intemnal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the School System’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the School System as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15,
2010 on our consideration of the School System’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit,

The accompanying Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General
Fund, Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Grant Fund, and Schedules of Funding Progress on pages 13
through 58, 59, and 60, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

11

KPMG LLF is & Delaware limited liability partnership, the U.S.
-member firm of KPMG Intemational Cooperative, a Swiss entity.




Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the School System’s basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules of the
Special Revenue Funds, budgetary comparison schedule of the Capital Fund, and the statistical section are
presented for purposcs of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the budgetary comparison schedules of
the Special Revenue Funds, and the budgetary comparison schedule of the Capital Fund have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

KPrie LP

November 15, 2010

12




Roanoke County Public Schools
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

The management of Roanoke County Public Schools (the School System) presents the
following discussion and analysis as an overview of the financial activities of the School
System for the year ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the information -
presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report, and the
School System’s basic financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ The assets of the School System exceeded its liabilities as of June 30, 2010 by $82.4
million (net assets). Of this amount, $40.6 million (unrestricted net assets) may be
used to meet the School System’s future obligations to citizens and creditors (Exhibit
A).

* On a government-wide basis for govermnmental activities, the School System had
expenses, net of program revenues, of $114.9 million, which were $3.7 million less than
general revenues of $118.6 million (Exhibit B). '

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was
$9.3 million or 7.5 percent of total general fund expenditures for fiscal year 2010
(Exhibits C and D).

o The general fund, on a current financial resource basis, reported revenues in excess of

‘expenditures and other financing sources (uses) of $4.0 million for fiscal year 2010
(Exhibit D).
OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

~The financial section of the comprehensive annual financial report consists of the following;

Components of the Financial Section

Management's Basic Required
Discussion and Financial Supplementary
AnalysV Statements \n‘formation
Govermnment- Fund Notes to the
Wide Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

~iss -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School
System’s basic financial statements. The basic financial statements consist of three

13




Roanoke County Public Schools
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the basic financial statements. In addition, required supplementary information
accompanies the basic financial statements but is unaudited.

Historically, the primary focus of local government financial statements has been summarized
fund type information on a current financial resource basis. This approach has been modified
and the School System’s basic financial statements present two types of financial statements,
each with a different view of the School System’s finances. The focus is on both the School
System as a whole (government-wide) and the fund financial statements. The government-
wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the School
System’s overall financial position. The fund financial statements focus on the individual
funds of the School System, reporting the School System’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements. Both perspectives (government-wide and fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison and enhance the School System’s
accountability.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about the School System as a
whole using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The two
statements — Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, report the School System’s
net assets and how they have changed during the fiscal year. The amount of net assets, which
is the difference between the School System’s assets and liabilitics, is one way to measure the
overall financial position of the School System. Over time, increases or decreases in the
School System’s net assets are indicators of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. Other non-financial factors must also be considered, however, such as changes in
the property tax base of the County of Roanoke, Virginia (the County) and the condition of
school buildings and other facilities, to assess the overall financial health of the School System.

The School System does not have any business-type activities and reports only governmental
activities. Governmental activities include the School System’s basic services including
instruction, administration, attendance and health, transportation, operations and maintenance,
technology, facilities, and school nutrition. County appropriations and state aid finance the
majority of these activities.

The government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page 27 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

Government financial statements have fraditionally been prepared using the fund financial
statement presentation. They provide more detailed information about the School System
funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds — not the system as a whole. The

School System utilizes three types of funds:

o Governmental funds: Most of the School System’s activities are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on 1) how resources flow into and out of these funds,
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and 2) the balances available at year-end to spend in future periods. Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps the reader
to determine whether there are current financial resources that can be used in the near
future to finance the School System’s programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, a
reconciliation is provided at the bottom of the governmental funds statement that
explains the relationship (or differences) between the statements.

e Proprietary funds: Services for which the School System charges customers a fec are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide
statements, provide both long and short-term financial information. The School System
uses internal service funds to account for the financing of services provided by one
department to other departments of the school system, on a cost reimbursement basis.
The School System uses internal service funds for health insurance, dental insurance,
and risk management activities.

¢ Fiduciary funds: The School System is responsible for agency assets that can be used
only for the designated beneficiaries. The student activity funds and the Regional
Alternative School are included in this fund type as agency funds. The agency funds
are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary assets and liabilities. These assets are
excluded from the School System’s government-wide statements because the School
System cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found beginning on page 29 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements provide
additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can
be found beginning on page 36 of this report.

Required supplementary information. In addition to the basic financial statements and
accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information
concerning the School System’s budgetary comparisons and progress in funding its obligation
to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be
found beginning on page 58 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL SYSTEM
Summary of Net Assets

The following table reflects the condensed Summary of Net Assets as presented in the
government-wide financial statements:
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Takle 1
Summary of Net Assets
As of June 38, 2010 and 2009
Governmental Activities Percentage
2010 2009 Change
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 49477162 § 43,392,392 14%
Capital assets, net 44,665,708 48,126,865 1%
Total assets 94,142,870 91,519,257 3%
Liabilities:
Other liabilities 6,739,515 7,272,641 -7%
Long-term liabilities 5,010,942 5,532,262 -9%
Total liabilitics 11,750,457 12,804,903 -8%
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 41,830,203 44 965,789 -T%
Unrestricted 40,562,210 33,748,565 20%
Total net assets $ 82,392.413 § 78,714,354 5%

As noted above, the amount of net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the School System, assets exceed liabilities by
$82.4 million at the close of fiscal year 2010. This increase of $3.7 million reflects an overall
improvement in the School System’s financial position and is the result of a combination of
factors including 1) a hiring and spending freeze implemented by the School Board early in the
year to address anticipated state aid reductions which resulted in expenditure savings of $4.2
million, 2) state and local revenue reductions of $11.1 million primarily due to mid-year state
budget cuts, 3) the reduction in capital contributions from the County government of $5.1
million for school assets transferred back to the schools upon full payment of outstanding debt,
and 4) the realization of new federal grants authorized by the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) and distributed to the School System during fiscal year 2010. The
ARRA funds were allocated to School Systems to stimulate the economy by funding new jobs
and/or preserving existing jobs that were otherwise likely to be eliminated due to severe
economic conditions at the national, state, and local levels. Federal revenue collections
exceeded budget by $2.1 million as a result of the distribution of the ARRA funds to public
schools.

Expenditure savings came primarily from the reduction in personnel under the hiring freeze
implemented at the start of the fiscal year. Positions vacated through voluntary retirements and
resignations were reorganized among remaining personnel and the position remained vacant for
the remainder of the fiscal year. Likewise, a spending freeze on operating costs was in place
for the entire year in which departments evaluated the necessity of each purchase prior to
spending. In addition, the Virginia General Assembly approved a Virginia Retirement System
(VRS) premium holiday in March 2010 that relieved the School System from payment of the
employer share of the VRS retiree and full life insurance premiums for April through June
2010 resulting in significant one-time expenditure savings.
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The funds budgeted for expenses that did not materialize will be used for future capital
purchases in accordance with the adopted year end balance policy. :

The Commonwealth of Virginia requires counties to issue general obligation debt for all
financially dependent component units. The County reports in its basic financial statements the
majority of the debt related to the School System’s capital assets. However, the School System -
is responsible for a capital lease obligation of $2.8 million as of June 30, 2010 for capital leases
entered into during fiscal years 2007 and 2009 related to an energy management project and
internet filtering equipment, respectively.

The largest portion of the School System’s net assets (50.8 percent) reflects its investment in
capital assets (i.e., land, buildings, fumiture and equipment), net of related capital lease
obligation. The School System uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets ($40.6 million) may be used to meet the School System’s future
obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the current fiscal year, the School System is
able to report positive balances in both categories of net assets. The same situation applied for
the prior year.

Changes in Net Assets

The County appropriation and general state aid accounted for most of the School System
‘revenue, contributing 78 cents of every dollar of expenses. The remaining 22 cents of every
dollar of expenses are funded with federal and state aid for specific programs, charges for
services, and miscellaneous revenues. :

The School System’s total revenues decreased by 4% to $153.7 million and expenses for all
programs and services fell by 3% to $150.0 million. Most of the School System’s expenses, or
83 cents of every dollar spent, are directly related to the provision of services to students,
including classroom instruction, attendance and health, transportation, technology, and school
nutrition. The balance of every dollar spent goes for administrative costs (2 cents), operations
and maintenance (8 cents), and interest and other charges for the school portion of County debt
payments on school construction and renovations (7 cents).
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The following chart shows the revenues and expenses of the governmental activities:

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 39, 2010 and 2009
Governmental Activities Percentage
_ 2010 2009 Change
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 4597808 § 4,651,851 -1%
Operating grants and contributions 28,973,555 24,465,320 18%
Capital grants and contributions 1,512,936 1,318,410 15%
General revenues:
County appropriation 63,597,776 64,267,132 -1%
State aid ' 53,945,620 64,632,296 -17%
Miscellaneons 357,303 755,268 -53%
Total revenues ' 152,984,998 _ 160,090,277 -4%
Expenses
Instruction 104,853,420 113,413,226 -8%
Administration 2,878,527 3,037,138 -5%
Attendance and health services 2,910,184 2,915,739 0%
Transportation 5,833,078 6,119,667 -5%
Operations and maintenance 12,378,003 12,138,884 2%
Technology 4,511,121 5,754,612 -22%
School nutrition 5,622,545 5,894,703 -5%
Capital lease interest 122,565 132,312 -7%
Interest and other charges 10,871,639 4,729,369 130%
Total expenses 149,981,082 154,135,650 -3%
Excess in net assets before capital contribution
and special items 3,003,916 5,954,627 -50%
Capital contribution - 5,171,236 N/A
Special item - pollution remediation expense - (94,708) N/A
Special item - gain on sale of building 674,143 - N/A
Change in net assets 3,678,059 11,031,155 -67%
Net assets, beginning of year 78,714,354 67,683,199 16%
Net assets, end of year $ 82392413 % 78,714,354 5%

Governmental Activities

“Governmental activities increased the School System’s net assets by $3.7 million. Revenues for
governmental activities decreased $6.4 million (4.0%) and total expenses decreased $4.2
million {2.7%) when compared to the prior year. Key elements of these changes during fiscal .
year 2010 were as follows:
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¢ Operating grants and contributions increased by 18% due to the receipt of federal
stimulus funds under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.

e Capital grants and contributions increased by 15% with the receipt of federal stimulus
funds allocated for school capital projects being partially offset by the loss of state aid
for construction in the prior year.

o State aid decreased by 17% due to the decrease in basic aid allocated to the School
System by the General Assembly.

e Capital contributions were eliminated for the fiscal year as there were no tenancy in
common assets to be transferred to the school books from the local government.

¢ Miscellaneous revenues decreased by 53% due to significant reductions in investment
income. '

¢ Instruction costs decreased by 7 percent reflecting the freezing of salaries at the 2008-
09 levels and the hiring freeze in effect all year which resulted in a significant number
of positions remaining vacant as employees voluntarily retired or resigned from the
School System. In addition, an overall spending freeze remained in effect all year
contributing to a reduction in operating costs from the prior year across all functional
areas.

e Administrative costs decreased by 5 percent due to the spending freeze as well as fewer
employees enrolling in the group health insurance plan.

o Transportation expenses decreased by 5 percent as a result of the hiring and spending
freezes and lower average fuel prices than the previous year.

. Technology expenses decrcased by 22% reflecting the significant first time investment
in interactive white boards in the previous year and a lower level of like purchases in
the current year associated with the overall economic constraint imposed on the School
System.

¢ School nutrition expenses decreased by 5% as a result of the hiring and spending
freezes.

o Interest and other charges increased by 130% reflecting a combination of the adopted
financial policy to reserve $300,000 in new funds each year for funding of future debt
related to the Capital Improvement Plan, the transfer for interest on County debt
outstanding (and related to school assets), and the transfer of major capital reserves to
school capital projects recorded on the local government books in conjunction with
bonds issued to fund the full project costs. The financial policy was adopted by the
School Board and Roanoke County Board of Supervisors in 2005.

e Overall, governmental activities decreased due to the hiring and spending freezes in
place for the entire year.

Tables 2 and 3 present the cost of eight major School System activities and shows each
activity’s net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid
provided by specific programs). The net cost reflects the financial burden that was placed on
the taxpayers by each of these functions.

e The cost of all governmental activities this year was $150.0 million.
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¢ The amount that the Roanoke County citizens paid for these activities through local
taxes was $63.6 million.

¢ Some of the costs were paid by those who directly benefited from the programs ($4.6
million), entitlements from state and federal aid ($29.0 million), and miscellaneous
payments ($1.5 million).

Table 3
Total Cost and Net Cost of Governmental Activities
For the Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
Total Cost of Services Percentage Net Cost of Services Percentage
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009 Change

Instruction $ 104,853,420 % 113,413,226 -8% % 76,161,314 b 89,821,537 -15%
Administration 2,878,527 3,037,138 -5% 2,874,752 3,034,410 5%
Attendance and

health services 2,910,184 2,915,739 0% 2,910,184 2,915,739 0%
Transportation 5,833,078 6,119,667 ~5% 5,833,078 6,119,667 -5%
Operations and

maintenance 12,378,003 12,138,884 2% 11,573,207 11,713,680 -1%
Technology 4,511,121 5,754,612 -22% 4,511,121 4,943,673 9%
School nutrition 5,622,545 5,894,703 -5% 38,923 289,682 -87%
Capital lease interest 122,565 132,312 ~1% 122,565 132,312 -7%
Interest and '

other charges 10,871,639 4,729,369 130% 10,871,639 4,729,369 130%

Total expenses 3 149,981,082 3§ 154,135,650 3% 3 114,896,783 $ 123,700,069 -7%

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL SYSTEM’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds consist of the General Fund, Special Revenue
Fund, and Capital Projects Fund and account for the general operations of the School System.
As noted earlier, the School System uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the School System’s
governmental funds is on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the end of the current fiscal
year, the School System’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $29.3
million, an increase of $6.2 million in comparison with fiscal year 2009. Of this amount, 23
percent ($6.7 million) constitutes unreserved general fund balance designated for future capital
projects in accordance with the adopted Use of Year End Balance policy. The School Board has
an Emergency Fund balance of $2.7 million at year end which is unreserved and undesignated
but intended for emergency needs including unexpected revenue shortfalls and/or unanticipated
expenditure increases during future years. The remainder of the governmental funds balance is
either reserved or designated to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the period or to account
for future commitments. These funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting.  The fund balance in the General Fund increased primarily as a result of
expenditure savings generated by a hiring and spending freeze throughout the fiscal year. .
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The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Capital Projects Fund balance consisted of
$16.4 million encumbered or designated for future school capital projects. The fund balance
increased by $1.6 million related to the board policy to commit year end General Fund balances
for projects in the Capital Projects Fund. Significant expenditures from the capital reserve
were incurred this year to renovate three elementary schools and one high school and begin
construction on one new elementary school. These projects are part of the School Capital
Improvement Plan.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The School System budget is prepared in accordance with the Code of Virginia. During the
year, the School System amended the original budget primarily for the following purposes:

* To reappropriate monies to pay for commitments in the form of encumbrances
established prior to June 30, 2009 but not paid by that date.

¢ To reappropriate grants, donations and other revenues authorized in fiscal year 2009 or
earlier, but not expended or encumbered as of June 30, 2009,

e To appropriate grants, donations, and other revenues accepted or adjusted in fiscal year
2010 when official notice of approval was received.

¢ To appropriate the designated general fund balance to capital projects.

Table 4 presents a condensed version of the budgetary comparison of the original budget,
amended budget, and actual amounts for fiscal year 2010.

Table 4
Budgetary Highlights - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
Original Budget as
Budget Amended Actual
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 60,543,357 § 63,597,776 $ 63,597,776
Other 77,365,771 76,449,028 74,300,146
Total 137,909,128 140,046,804 137,897,922
Expenditures 133,469,176 136,521,126 124,751,816
Transfers out 4,439,952 9,176,720 9,176,720
Net change in fund balance  § - 3 (5,651,042) $ 3,969,386

Actual General Fund total revenues were less than the amended budget by $2.1 million for
fiscal year 2010. The deficit reflects the signficant mid-year reduction in state funding for
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public education approved by the General Assembly in March 2010. Expenditures were less
than budgetary estimates by $11.8 million, including the unspent emergency reserve of $2.7
- million, resulting in additional savings at year end. The School System operated throughout the
year under hiring and spending freezes in anticipation of the possibility of mid-year state
funding reductions associated with anticipated state revenue shortfalls. The School Board
appropriated $6.7 million in transfers in fiscal year 2010 to allocate the prior year ending fund
balance for future capital projects. Due to the overall spending freezes for the year, the School
System increased the ending fund balance at June 30, 2010 by $4.0 million compared to the
prior year end. The School Board and County Board of Supervisors have a jointly adopted
financial policy designating year end balances for major and minor capital projects.

Proprietary Funds. The School System’s Intemal Service Funds, a proprietary fund type, are
presented on the same basis as the government-wide financial statements but are presented in
more detail in the fund financial statements.

Unrestricted net assets of the Health Insurance, Dental Insurance, and Risk Management, and
Laptop Insurance Reserve Funds at the end of the year amounted to $12.7 million. The
increase (decrease) in net assets for all four funds was $227,295, $3,932, $68,273, and
($65,502), respectively.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LEASES

At the end of the fiscal year, the School System had land, buildings and improvements,
construction in progress, and furniture and equipment in governmental activities with a total
historical cost of $97.9 million. Total accumulated depreciation on these assets was
approximately $53.2 million. Table 5 shows capital asset balances (net of accumulated
depreciation) for fiscal years 2010 and 2009, More detailed information about capital assets
can be found in Note 6 to the basic financial statements.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

Completion of various building improvements at a cost of $1,097,059.
Purchase of 10 school buses and 13 support vehicles at a cost of $1,051,825.
Commencement and/or continuing construction in progress of $339,573.
Purchase of equipment at a cost of $1,025,715.

Sale of Southview building for proceeds of $2,000,000.
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Table 5
Capital Assets
(net of accumulated depreciation)
As of June 30, 2010 and 2009

Governmental Activities Percentage

2010 2009 Change
Land ' $ 5222784 $ 5,238,978 0.3%
Buildings and improvements 28,930,056 31,457,684 . -8.0%
Furniture and equipment 10,270,241 10,430,090 -1.5%
Construction in progress 242 627 1,000,113 -75.7%
Totals $ 44,665,708 $ 48,126,865 -1.2%

As of June 30, 2010, the School System had an outstanding capital lease obligation of
$2,835,505 related to capital leases initiated in fiscal years 2007 and 2009. More detailed
information about the capital leases can be found in Note 8 to the basic financial statements.

SCHOOL SYSTEM RELATED DEBT

Under the Code of Virginia, local governments have a “tenancy in common” for school
property with School Systems whenever the locality incurs any financial obligation which is
payable over more than one fiscal year. For financial reporting purposes, the legislation
permits the locality to report the portion of the school property related to any outstanding
financial obligations on the County’s financial statements. In accordance with this legislation,
the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes school capital assets of $147.1
million and $121.0 million in related outstanding debt.

FACTORS INFLUENCING FUTURE BUDGETS
Key factors that are expected to impact future budgets include:

Current financial market volatility and continued uncertainty of the economy.

Current and projected state budget reductions for public education.

Increasing federal requirements for student and school achievement.

Replacement of technology and the allocation of a sustainable revenue stream.
Declining student enrollments.

Projected increases in retirement contribution rates assessed by the Virginia Retirement
System.

Volatile fuel and utility prices.

¢ Funding for the Capital Improvements Program.
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During fiscal year 2010, the Commonwealth of Virginia (the Commonwealth) initiated certain
responsive actions to the economic downturn that will continue to affect the School System.

Through changes in certain actuarial assumptions for VRS sponsored retirement plans, which
were affected by legislation passed by the General Assembly, the Commonwealth was able to
defer rate increases requested by the VRS Trustees, and an increase in the local employer share
of these pension contributions was similarly deferred. The impact of these deferrals reduced
pension related costs of the School System in fiscal year 2010 and will also decrease pension
related costs in fiscal year 2011. The legislation requires that this deferral of costs begin to be
replenished starting in fiscal year 2012 and will continue until fully replenished in fiscal year
2021. Ultimately, it is likely that there will be significant increases in the local employer costs
to be funded in order to meet the future payment obligations under the VRS plan. The 2011
budget reflects the reduced pension rates approved by the General Assembly. Accordingly, the
2012 budget is expected to require budgetary increases to phase in the expected repayment of
the pension deferrals approved for fiscal years 2010 and 2011.

The School System implemented Statement No. 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standard
Board - Accounting for Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions (GASB 45) in 2008. For the School System, other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) include medical coverage extended to retirees. Currently, the School System funds
these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. For government-wide reporting purposes, GASB 435
requires the School System to actuarially determine the value of these benefits and recognize
the costs of OPEB as they are incurred. Also, the School System is required to disclose the
extent to which these benefits have been funded. The School System has conducted an
actuarial valuation of its OPEB liability. The actuarial study reflects an actuarially accrued
liability of $20.3 million, an annual required contribution of $1.7 million, and a total
postemployment benefit asset of $27,710. More detailed information about the OPEB costs
can be found in Note 11 to the basic financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

During fiscal year 2010, the state economy mirrored the slumping national economy. Sales tax
collections, representing 10 percent of the school budget, improved only slightly over the
preceding year continuing to reflect sluggish personal consumption. State aid, including sales
taxes, represents 50 percent of the general fund revenues for 2010 which is down from 55% in
2009, The significant state budget reductions arising in 2009 and continuing into 2010 are
expected to impact the school budget for the foreseeable future.

The County provided approximately 46 percent of the School System’s operating budget needs
in fiscal year 2010. State education funding reductions continue to place a burden on the local
government to fund the existing educational programs and services and have a direct impact on
the School System’s ability to sustain the quality of education expected by our citizens. The
remainder of the general fund revenue was funded by federal and other revenue sources totaling
4% of general fund revenues.

In February 2009, the federal government authorized the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act (ARRA) resulting in the significant infusion of new federal money for education targeted
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primarily at state fiscal stabilization funds (SFSF), disadvantaged students, preschool, and
special education. The Virginia General Assembly used the SFSF allocated to Virginia in the
fiscal 2010 state budget to offset significant declines in state revenues. Federal stimulus funds
of $3.8 million were used in fiscal year 2010 to subsidize the operating fund and offset
reductions in state aid under the SFSF section of the federal legislation. Access to this new
funding source provides a temporary means of addressing budget shortfalls due to declining
revenue sources but also creates a challenge in addressing the “stimulus cliff” when the ARRA
funds end in 2011.

" REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and customers with a
general overview of the School System’s finances and to demonstrate the School System’s
accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning this report or requests for
additional financial information should be directed to the Assistant Superintendent of Finance,
Roanoke County Public Schools, 5937 Cove Road, Roancke, Virginia 24019, telephone (540)
562-3900, or visit the School System’s web site at www.rcs.k12.va.us.
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Roanoke County Public Schools Exhibit A
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010
Governmental
Activities
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 30,798,493
Investments 14,006,348
Accounts receivable 232,373
Due from other governments 4,245,466
Inventory 166,772
Other postemployment obligation asset 27,710
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 5,465,411
Other capital assets, nct 39,200,297
Capital assets, net 44,665,708
Total assets 94,142,870
Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,201,695
Accrued liabilities 1,284,487
Unearned revenue 1,637,766
Long-term liabilities:
Portion due or payable within one year:;
Claims payable 1,423,151
Compensated absences 845,236
Obligation under capital leases 347,180
Portion due or payable after one year:
Claims payable : 472,923
Compensated absences 2,049,694
Obligation under capital leases 2,488,325
Total liabilities 11,750,457
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 41,830,203
Unrestricted 40,562,210
Total net assets $ 82,392,413

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2610

Net Expense
and Changes in
Program Revennes Net Assets
Operating Capital
- Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Instruction § 104,853,420 § 806,398 $ 27,002,979 % 882,729 § (76,161,314)
Support Services:
Administration 2,878,527 3,775 - - (2,874,752)
Attendance and health 2,910,184 - - - (2,910,184)
Transportation 5,833,078 - - - (5,833,078)
Operations and maintenance 12,378,003 174,589 - 630,207 {11,573,207)
Technology 4,511,121 - - - (4,511,121)
Noninstructional services:
School nutrition 5,622,545 3,613,046 1,970,576 - (38,923)
Capital lease debt service:
Interest 122,565 - - - (122,565}
Interest and other charges 10,871,639 - - - {10,871,639)
Total governmental
activities $ 149981082 & 4597808 % 28,973,555 % 1,512,936 § (114,896,783)
General revenues:
Payments from Roanoke County : 63,597,776
Non-categorical state aid 53,945,620
Miscellaneous 357,303
Total general revenues 117,900,659
Special item - gain on sale of building 674,143
Change in net assets 3,678,059
Net assets at beginning of year 78,714,354
Net assets at end of year B $ 82,392,413

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Reanoke County Public Schools Exhibit C
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010
Capital Total
General Grant Projects Nonmajor Governmental
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4740270 § - % 8,346,741 $ 1,548,890 § 14,635,501
Investments 4,536,371 - 7,987,711 1,482,266 14,006,348
Accounts receivable 205,379 - 691 8,155 214,225
Due from other governments 2,743,468 1,276,439 169,579 55,980 4,245,466
Due from other funds 979,722 - - - 979,722
Inventory 77,923 - - 88,849 166,772
Total assets $ 13,283,133 § 1276439 § 16504722 § 3,184,140  § 34,248,434
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 881,833 § 79,502 $ 62,283 % 108,515 § 1,132,133
Accrued liabilities 1,274,910 9.577 - - 1,284,487
Deferred revenue 1,505,962 22,768 - - 1,528,730
Due to other funds - 979,722 - - 979,722
Fotal liabilities 3,662,705 1,091,569 62,283 108,515 4,925072
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 195,829 450 168,609 - 364,888
Inventories 77,923 - - 88,349 166,772
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Special revenue funds - 184,420 - 2,986,776 3,171,196
Future capital projects 6,675,386 - 16,273,830 - 22,949.216
Undesignated 2,671,290 - - - 2,671,290
Total fund balances 9,620,428 184,870 16,442 439 3,075,625 29,323,362

Total liabilities and fund balances § 13,283,133 § 1276439 $§ 16,504,722 § 3,184,140

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Assets:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore
are not reported in the governmental funds (Note 6). 44,665,708

Intemal service funds are used by the School Board to charge the cost of health, dental, and workers'
compensation insurance to individeal funds. The asscts and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets (Exhibit F). 12,691216

Long-term assets or liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
as assets or liabilities in the governmental funds (Notes 11 and 13). Balances at June 30, 2010 are:

Obligation under capital leases {2,835,505)
Compensated absences (2,894,930)
Other post-employment benefits 27,710 (5,702,725)
Revenues carned but not considered available are not current financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds (Note 7). 1,414,852
Net assets of governmental activities $ 82,392,413

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Roanoke County Public Schools Exhibit D
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
Capital : Total
General Grant Projects Nonmajor Governmenital
Revenues
Intergovernmental:
Roanoke County $ 63597776 § - % 25000 % - % 63,622,776
Commonwealth of Virginia 69,502,612 840,006 882,729 83,985 71,309,332
Federal government 4,193,311 6,469,853 605,207 1,886,591 13,154,962
Charges for services 477,215 144,668 168,516 3,618,386 4,408,785
Other 127,008 - 95,515 34,750 - 257,273
Total revenues 137,897,922 7,454,527 1,776,967 5,623,712 152,753,128
Expenditures
Current: :
Instruction 94,148,008 7,141,064 882,729 1,275,540 103,447,341
Administration 2,852,598 - 2,151 - 2,854,789
Attendance and health 2,716,220 230,608 - - 2,946,828
Transportation 3,314,350 - - 683,421 : 5,997,771
Operations and maintenance 11,591,085 - 916,545 - 12,507,630
School nutrition - - - 5,615,301 5,615,301
Technology 3,359,628 23,885 1,172,561 - 4,556,074
Capital lease debt service:
Principal 325,571 - - - 325,571
Interest 122,565 - - - 122,565
Capital outlay:
Facilities 292,422 - 356,996 - 649,418
Intergovernmental:
Roancke County 4,029,36% - 6,667,246 - 10,696,615
Total expenditures 124,751,816 7,395,557 9,998,268 7,574,262 149,719,903
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 13,146,106 58,970 (8,221,301) (1,950,550) 3,033,225
Other financing sources (uses) -
Proceeds from sale of property - - 361 11,115 11,476
Special item - sale of building - - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Transfers in 1,130,863 18,387 7,854,360 2,512,115 11,515,725
Transfers out (10,307,583) (3,000} - - (10,310,583)
Total other financing sources (uses) (9,176,720) 15,387 9,854,721 2,523230 3,216,618
Net change in fund balances 3,969,386 74,357 1,633,420 572,680 6,249,843
Fund balances at beginning of year 5,651,042 110,513 14,809,019 2,502,945 23,073,519
Fund balances at end of year $ 9620428 $ 184870 § 16442439 § 3,075,625 $ 29,323,362

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Roanoke County Public Schools Exhibit E
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Act1v1t1es

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit D) $ 6,249,843

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different due to:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement of activities,

the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as

depreciation expense. This is the amount by which new depreciation expense ($4,670,562)

exceeds new capital outlay ($2,546,737) in the current year (Note 6). {2,123.825)

The obligation under capital leases is a current financial resource to governmental funds
while the repayment of the lease consumes current financial resources of governmental
funds. This amount is the difference in the treatment of the capital lease payment (Note 13). 325,571

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales and
donations) is a decrease in net assets. (1,337,333)

Revenues reported in the Statement of Activities, such as certain unearned revenues,

are not considered available current financial resources and therefore are not

reported as revenues in governmental funds. This is the amount by which the

current year uncarned amount exceeds the prior year available resources. 118,671

Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated absences, post-employment
benefits, and pollution remediation expenses that do not require the use of current financial resources
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 211,134

Internal service funds are used by the School System to charge the costs of health,
dental, and workers' compensation insurance to individual funds. The change in net

assets of the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities (Exhibit G). 233,998
Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit B) § 3,678,059

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Roanoke County Public Schools

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2010

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
~Accounts receivable

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities;
Accounts payable

Claims payable
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities;
Claims payable

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Exhibit F

Internal
Service Funds

$ 16,162,592
18,148

16,180,740

69,562
1,423,151
1,523,888

3,016,601

472,923

472,923

3,489,524

12,691,216

$ 12,691,216
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Roanoke County Public Schools Exhibit G
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Internal
Service Funds

Operating revenues:

Charges for services b 16,757,355
Other operating revenues 187,880

Total operating revenues ' 16,945,235 -

Operating expenses:

Claims 15,388,019
Administrative charges 29,303
Total operating expenses 15,417,322
Operating income 1,527,913

Noneperating revenues (expenses):

Intergovernmental (175,024)
Interest and dividend income 86,251
Total nonoperating expenses, net (88,773)
Income before transfers 1,439,140
Transfers out {(1,205,142)
Change in net assets 233998
Net assets at beginning of year 12,457,218
Neit assets at end of year b 12,691,216

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments from suppliers
Claims paid
Other receipts
Other payments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest and dividends received
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activitics:
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

. See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit H

Internal
Service Funds

$

16,767,237
(35,273)
55,527
(15,447,767
233,819
(540)

1,573,003

(1,380,166)

86,251

279,088
15,883,504

$

16,162,592

$

1,527,913

9,882
49,557
(59,748)
45,399

$

1,573,003




Roanoke County Public Schools
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
June 30, 2010

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit I

Agency
Funds

$ 2,268,323

$ 2,268,323

115,082
2,153,241

$ 2,268,323




Roanoke County Public Schools

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2010
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Reporting Entity

Roanoke County Public Schools (School System) is a corporate body operating under the constitution of
Virginia and the Code of Virginia. The members of the School Board are elected by the citizens of the
County of Roanoke, Virginia (County) to serve 4-year terms. The School Board is responsible for setting the
educational policies of Roanoke County Public Schools and employs a superintendent to implement the
School Board’s policies. The mission of the School System is to provide quality programs to meet the
educational needs of all students in the County in a safe learning environment.

The School System receives funding from property taxes collected and allocated by the County, tuition and
fees, and state and federal aid. Virginia Public School Authority bonds, state literary loans, and general
obligation bonds approved by the County Board of Supervisors and/or County voters fund school construction
projects. The School System is considered to be a component unit of the County because the County Board
of Supervisors approves the School System’s budget, levies the necessary taxes to finance operations, and
issues debt on behalf of the School System. The School System is fiscally dependent on the County and its
operations are funded significantly by transfers from the County’s general fund.

The financial statements of the School System have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards

~ Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial

reporting principles. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies and reporting practices of
the School System.

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State
and Local Governments, as amended, was implemented July 1, 2001. It established requirements and a
reporting model for the annual financial reports of state and local governments. GASB Statement No. 34
(GASB 34) was developed to make annual reports easier to understand and more useful to the people who use
governmental financial information to make decisions and includes the following:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis — GASB 34 requires that financial statements be
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial
activities in the form of “management’s discussion and analysis” (MID&A). This analysis is similar to
the analysis included in private-sector annual reports.

Government-wide financial statements — The reporting model includes financial statements prepared
using full accrual accounting for all of the government’s activities. This approach includes not just
current assets and liabilities but also capital assets and long-term liabilities. Accrual accounting reports
all of the revenues, not just those received in the current year or soon thereafter.

Statement of Net Assets — The Statement of Net Assets is designed to display the financial
position of the government. Governments report all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and report depreciation expense — the cost of
“using up” capital assets — in the Statement of Activities. The net assets of a government are
-presented in three categories — 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3)
unrestricted.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Statement of Activities ~ The government-wide Statement of Activities reports expenses and
revenues in a format that focuses on the cost of each government’s functions. The expense of
individual functions is compared to the revenues generated directly by that function.

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

A summary reconciliation of the difference between total fund balances and total net assets for
governmental activities is presented on the governmental funds balance sheet. The asset and liability
elements which comprise the reconciliation difference stem from governmental funds using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting while the
government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting.

A summary reconciliation of the difference between the net change in governmental fund balances and
change in net assets for governmental activities is presented in an accompanying schedule to the
governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. The revenue
and expense elements which comprise the reconciliation difference stem from governmental funds
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting
while the government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting.

Budgetarv Comparison Schedules - Demonstrating compliance with the legally adopted budget is an
important component of a government’s accountability to the public. The School System and many
other governments revise their original budgets over the course of the year for a variety of reasons. The
School System provides budgetary comparison information in its annual report, which includes a
comparison of the original budget to both the final budget and actual results. The School System adopts
annual budgets for the General, School Grants, School Nutrition, School Textbook, School Bus, and
Capital Funds. Additional budgets for the Capital Funds are approved by the School Board during the
fiscal year as funding is identified and designated for school bus purchases and capital projects.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the School System as a whole, except for fiduciary funds. The government-
wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus, which differs from the
manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial
statements therefore include a reconciliation, with brief explanations, to better identify the relationship
between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activitics presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each function or program within the governmental activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the
goods or services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Charges for services include adult
education, school lunch sales, rental of facilities, and summer tuition. Program-specific operating
grants and contributions revenues include the federal and state school lunch program and other grants
and reimbursements. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the School System. In accordance with the Auditor of Public Accounts in the
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Commonwealth of Virginia (APA), revenues received from the local government for the overall
educational program are non-categorical and therefore considered general revenue. The comparison of
direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which the governmental function is self-
financing or draws from the general revenues of the School System.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are when services are provided and used.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

-Expenses are grouped in three broad categories: instruction, support services, and non-instructional
services. Some functions classified under support services include expenses that are, in essence,
indirect expenses of instructional functions. However, the School System does not allocate those
indirect expenses to the instructional program.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the School
System’s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category —
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is
on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds
are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

The following is a brief description of the specific funds used by the School System:

¢ Governmental Funds: These funds are reported using the cwrent financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The School System considers all revenues
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected as of June 30 or
within 30 days thereafter. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for claims and judgments and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions arc reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. The individual governmental funds are:

® General Fund — This is the primary operating fund of the School System. It is used to
account for all financial transactions and resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. Revenues are derived primarily from state and federal aid and transfers from the
County of Roanoke.

e Grant Fund {(a Special Revenue Fund) - This fund is used to account for proceeds of specific
grants that are restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. This fund includes transactions
related to the federal, state, and private grants that are not specifically reported in another fund.
The Grant Fund is considered a major fund for fund financial statement reporting purposes.

e Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for financial resources used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by the general
fund. The Capital Projects Fund is considered a major fund for fund financial statement
reporting purposes.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

» Non-major Funds — These funds are used to account for revenues internally restricted to
expenditures for certain purposes including the funds for school nutrition, textbooks, and school
buses.

e Proprietary Funds: Proprictary funds are used to account for operations that are financed in a
manner similar to a private business enterprise. The measurement focus is based on
determination of change in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. Operating revenues
include charges for services. Operating expenses include costs of services. All revenues and
expenses not meeting these definitions, such as interest and dividend income, are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses,

* Internal Service Funds — These funds account for employee health, dental, and risk
management coverage provided to other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. The
internal service funds derive their funding from charges assessed to the user departments and
employees. They are included in the governmental activities for government-wide reporting
purposes. The effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. The excess revenues or expenses for the fund have been allocated to the
appropriate functional activity.

e Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the School System in
a purely custodial capacity. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial
statements. Agency funds include the student activity funds in each school and the financial
resources of the Regional Alternative School.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting,
Revenues are recorded when carned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations
is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The School System considers all revenues
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within thirty days after
year-end. State aid, grant reimbursements, sales taxes, and interest are considered to be susceptible to
accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The School System’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on
hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Deposits and Investments — The County maintains all School System funds except for those of the agency
fund, which are maintained by school principals. Monies that are legally required to be maintained
individually, such as trust balances and contractor escrows are deposited and maintained in individual
segregated bank accounts. All other monies of the School System are deposited with the County Treasurer in
a pool of bank accounts and are used to purchase investments which are specifically allocated to the
appropriate funds. Short-term investments are stated at cost (which approximates fair value) and consist of
repurchase agreements, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances and U.S. government securities. Each fund
with monies deposited in the pooled accounts has an equity interest therein. Interest earned is allocated based
on average monthly balance.

The County requires all banking institutions holding its public funds to protect such funds in accordance with
the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (Act). The Act established a single body of law applicable to
the pledge of security as collateral for public funds on deposit in banking institutions so that the procedures
for securing public deposits is uniform throughout the Commonwealth. Under the Act, banks holding public
deposits must pledge certain levels of collateral and make monthly filings with the State Treasury Board.

Cash in student activity funds represent available cash in the local school accounts, all of which are fully
insured or collateralized. Deposits, including checking and savings accounts and certificates of deposit, are
placed with banks and savings and loan institutions and are protected by the Federal Depository Insurance
laws or collateral held under the provisions of the Act.

Accounts Receivable — Accounts receivable consist of insurance refunds, tuition payments, substitute
reimbursements, energy conservation savings, interest income, and utility refunds from the individual schools.

Due from Other Governments and Other Funds — Local sales taxes and governmental accounts receivable
are recorded in the School System’s accounts as due from other governments. Transactions between funds
and other entities that are representative of the recognition of revenues or expend1tures are referred to as “due
to/from™ the other funds or entities.

Inventory — Inventories consist of various consumable supplies and are maintained on a perpetual basis with
periodic verification based on physical count. All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in first-out
method for the government-wide statements. The cost of the consumable supplies is recorded as expenditures
when purchased in the general fund. Reported inventories in the governmental funds are equally offset by a
reservation of fund balance.

Capital Assets — Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and as assets in the

government-wide financial statements to the extent of the School System’s capitalization threshold. The

capitalization criterion for reporting capital assets has been established at $5,000. Major additions, including

those that significantly prolong a capital asset’s economic life or expand usefulness, are capitalized. Normal

repairs that merely maintain the asset in its present condition are recorded as expenditures and are not

capitalized. Depreciation expense for capital assets is identified with a function and is included as a direct
expense.

All capital assets are capitalized at historical costs and updated for additions and retirements during the year.
Donated capital assets are reported at estimated fair value at the time received. The School System does not
own any infrastructure. Upon sale or retirement of a capital asset, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation, if applicable, are eliminated from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
included in the results of operations.
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June 30, 2010

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Buiidings 40 years
Building improvements 10 years
Furniture and equipment 3 —20 years

Compensated Absences — The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide statement
consists of unpaid accumulated vacation and sick leave balances. The liability is based on the sick leave and
the vacation leave accumulated at June 30. Limited vacation and sick leave may be accumulated until
retirement or termination. Accumulated sick leave is paid at a fixed daily rate and accumulated vacation is
paid at the employee’s current wage upon retirement or termination. A liability for these amounts is reported
in governmental funds only if they have matured as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Net Assets — Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and related debt. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are external restrictions imposed by grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments. The School System applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes
for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available,

Encumbrances - The School System uses encumbrance accounting, wherein purchase orders, contracts and
other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation. Encumbrances at year-end represent the estimated amount of expenditures ultimately to result
if unperformed contracts and open purchase orders in process are completed. Funding for all encumbrances
lapses at year-end and reappropriation is required by the County Board of Supervisors with the exception of
capital project fund encumbrances. '

Pension Plan - The School System participates in an agent and cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System. Defined benefit pension plan contributions are
actuarially determined and consist of current service costs and amortization of the unfunded accrued liability.

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan — The School System participates in a postemployment health care
benefits plan through a single-employer defined benefit plan. The benefits are set by the School Board and
subject to change through board action.

Intergovernmental Revenue — Revenue from specific purpose federal, state, and other grants, which are
provided to fund specific program expenditures, is recognized at the time that the specific expenditures are
incurred and have met all eligibility requirements for reimbursement. Revenue from general purpose grants is
recognized in the period to which the grant applies.

Interfund Transactions — In the governmental fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting
from interfund loans are classified as “interfund receivables/payables.” These amounts are eliminated in the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets. Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in
the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flow of cash or goods from one fund to
another without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are
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2)

reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperatmg revenues/expenses in
proprietary funds.

New Accounting Pronouncements - The School System adopted GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, in fiscal year 2010. This Statement provides guidance on how to
identify, account for, and report intangible assets. The adoption of GASB Statement No. 51 had no material
affect on the School System’s financial statements.

The County adopted GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments, in fiscal year 2010. This Statement provides guidance to improve how: state and local
governments report information about derivative instruments - financial arrangements used by governments to
manage specific risks or make investments- in their financial statements. The adoptxon of GASB Statement
No. 53 had no material affect on the School System’s financial statements.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior period’s balances appearing in the
notes to the basic financial statements to place them on a basis comparable with the current period’s
presentation in the notes to the basic financial statements.

Use of Estimates - Management of the School System has made a number of estimates and assumptions
relating to the reporting of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses/expenditures, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances of governmental funds have been classified to
reflect the limitations and restrictions placed on the respective funds as follows:

Reserved Fund Balance

* Inveniories — This amount represents inventories reported in the General Fund.

e Encumbrances — This amount reflects a reserve for goods and services encumbered, or ordered, prior
to the end of the fiscal year, for which delivery of goods and services had not been made prior to the
close of the fiscal year.

Unreserved Fund Balances

*  Fund Balances - Designated — These amounts represents tentative plans for financial resources in a
future period.

*  Fund Balances - Undesignated — This amount represents the remainder of the School System’s fund
balance in governmental funds.
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June 30, 2010
(3) Deposits and Investments

The County of Roanoke maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all County funds and
by the School System. The School System’s portion of this pool is included on the balance sheet in “cash and
cash equivalents” and “investments”. As of June 30, 2010, the fair value and maturity of the School System’s
total deposits and investments were as follows:

Investment Maturity
Less Than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 year Credit Rating

Demand and time deposits 3 3,205,704 3 3,205,704 N/A
Money market mutual fimds 18,283,334 18,283,334 AAAmM
Virginia LGIP 7,322,769 7,322,769 AAAmM
Federal agency bonds and notes 15,993,034 15,993,034 AAA

$ 44,804,841 $ 44,804,841

The carrying value of deposits and investments for the School System as of June 30, 2010 is as follows:

Cash and Cash
Entity Equivalents Investments Total

Roanoke County Public Schools  $ 30,798,493 $ 14,006,348 8 44,804,841
Agency Funds 2,268,323 - 2,268,323

$ 33,066,816  $ 14,006,348 $ 47,073,164

Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk

In accordance with the Code of Virginia and other applicable laws, including regulations, the County’s
investment policy (Policy) limits credit risk by restricting authorized investments to the following: bonds,
notes and other direct obligations of the United States; bonds, notes, and other direct obligations of the
Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof: bonds and other obligations issued, guaranteed

. or assumed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development and the Asian Development Bank;

prime quality commercial paper; certificates of deposits; bankers acceptances; repurchase agreements; and
money market funds. The Policy requires that commercial paper have a minimum Standard & Poor’s (S&P)
rating (or Moody’s equivalent) of A-1 and requires certificates of deposits with savings and loan associations
to pledge collateral equal to 100% of their public deposits, compared to 50% required by banks. All cash and
investments of the County of Roanoke are covered by Federal deposit insurance or collateralized in
accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act. The Virginia Local Government Investment
Pool (LGIP} is administered by the Treasury Board pursuant to Sections 2.2-4600 through 2.2-4606 of the
Code of Virginia. The Treasury Board has delegated the management of the LGIP to the State Treasurer. The
fair value of the County’s position in the LGIP is the same as the value of the pool shares.

‘The Policy establishes limitations on portfolic composition, both by investment type and by issuer, in order to

control concentration of credit risk. The maximum percentage of the portfolio permitted in each eligible
security with the limit to any one issuer is as follows:
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U.S. Treasury Obligations 70%
U.S. Government Agency Securities and Instrumentalities

of Government Sponsored Corporations 80%
Bankers Acceptance with no more than 25% with any one

Institution and a maximum of 10% in any one issuance 40%
Repurchase Agreement Overnight with no more than 20%

with any one Institution 70%
Repurchase Agreement Two or more nights with no more

than 20% with any one Institution 25%
Certificate of Deposit with Commercial Banks with no more :

than 45% with any one institution 100%
Certificate of Deposit with Savings and Loan Associations

with no more than $100,000 with any one institution 10%

Commercial Paper with no more than 25% with any one

institution and a maximum of 10% or $1 million dollars in

any one issuance 35%
Local Government Investment Pool T5%

As of June 30, 2010, the portion of the County and School System’s portfolio, excluding the Virginia LGIP,
Virginia State Non-Arbitrage Program (SNAP), and U.S. Government guaranteed obligations that exceed 5%
of the total portfolio are as follows:

Issuer % of Portfolio

Smith Barney _ 29.48%

Federal Home Loan Bank 22.81%

Federal Farm Credit Bank 5.56%
Custodial Credit Risk

The Policy requires that all investment securities purchased by the County or held as collateral on deposits or
investments shall be held by the County or by a third-party custodial agent who may not otherwise be
counterparty to the investment transaction. As of June 30, 2010, all of the County’s investments are held by
the County or in a bank’s trust department in the County’s name.

Interest Rate Risk

The Policy requires maturity scheduling be timed to anticipated need and scheduled to coincide with projected
cash flow needs. All funds shall be considered short term except those reserved for capital projects and
prepayment funds being held for debt retirement. As of June 30, 2010, the County had no investments with a
maturity greater than 30 months.
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(4) Due from Other Governments

Q)

Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Commonwealth
Federal of Virginia Total
General Fund b 209,810 § 2,533,658 $ 2,743,468
Grant Fund 1,251,239 25,200 1,276,439
Capital Fund 160,777 8,802 169,579
Non-Major Fund 55,980 - 55,980
Total 3 1,677806 § 2,567,660 $ 4,245,466

A significant portion of the receivable in the General Fund is attributed to the state sales tax due to the School
System from the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Virginia Retail Sales and Use Tax Act require one and
one-eighth of every five cents collected in state sales tax to be distributed to school divisions on the basis of
school-age population.

Amounts due to the Grant Fund are attributed primarily to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
(IDEA) and the Titles I, IT and Il federal grants. IDEA is designed to ensure that all school age handicapped
children are provided a free, appropriate public education. Titles I, IT and III programs enhance the
instruction for disadvantaged children. Amounts due to the Capital Fund are primarily attributed to
reimbursements for capital projects funded with federal stimulus grants. Amounts due to the Non-Major
Fund are attributable primarily to state reimbursements for the school lunch program.

Interfund Balances and Transfers

Interfund balances as of June 30, 2010 consisted of the following:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Grant Fund $ 979,722

The balance due to the general fund from the grant fund is for a temporary loan to cover a timing difference
between grant reimbursement receipts and expenditures. The balance has subsequently been repaid.

45




Roanoke County Public Schools
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2010 consisted of the following amounts:

Transfers from Transfers from

Transfers to General Fund Grants Fund Internal Services Total

General Fund $ - 3 - $ 1,130,863 §$ 1,130,863
Grant Fund 18,387 - - 18,387
Capital Projects 7,851,360 3,000 - 7,854,360
Nonmajor Governmental 2,437,836 - 74,279 2,512,115
thal $ 10,307,583 $ 3,000 $ 1,205,142 § 11,515,725

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds
collecting the receipts to the primary government as debt service payments become due, and (3) use restricted
revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance
with budgetary authorizations.

(6) Capital Assets

- ‘Components of the School System’s capital assets, net, at June 30, 2010 are summarized as follows:

Land $ 5,222,784
Buildings and improvements 66,223,291
Furniture and equipment 26,161,387
Construction in progress 242,627
Subtotal 97,850,089
Accumulated depreciation (53,184,381)
Capital assets, net $ 44,665,708

In accordance with the GASB and Virginia state laws, all school related debt is reported in the
- Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the primary government as the County is legally
responsible for debt repayment. All capital assets related to this debt have been reported in the County
CAFR. During the fiscal year, the School System sold a vacated building to the Commonwealth of Virginia
for $2,000,000. The book value of the capital asset was $1,325,857, net of accumulated depreciation.
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The School System’s capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2009 Increases Decreases June 30, 2010
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 5,238,978 3 - 3 {16,194) § 5,222,784
Construction in progress 1,000,113 339,573 (1,097,059) 242,627
Total capital assets at
historical cost not being
depreciated 6,239,091 339,573 (1,113,253) 5465411
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 66,426,846 1,226,683 (1,430,238) 66,223,291
Furniture and equipment 24,458,127 2,077,540 {374,280) 26,161,387
Total capital assets at
historical cost being
depreciated 90,884,973 3,304,223 {1,804,518) 92,384,678
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements {34,969,162) (2,433,173) 109,100 (37,293,235)
Furniture and equipment {14,028,037) (2,237.389) 374,280 (15,891,146)
Total accumulated depreciation (48,997,199) (4,670,562) 483,380 (53,184,381)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 41,887,774 (1,366,339) {1,321,138) 39,200,297
Capital assets, net § 48,126,865 $  (1,026,766) § (2,434,39) § 44,665,708

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2010 was charged to School System activities as follows:

Governmental activities:

Instruction 5 3,618,501
Admdnistration 61,683
Transportation 957,954
Operations and maintenance 23,122
School nutrition 9,302

$ 4,670,562

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds; however, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The
adjustment from governmental funds to the government-wide statements is summarized as follows:

Capital outlay $ 2,546,737
Depreciation expense {4,670,562)
Total adjustments $ (2,123,825)
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- The School System has active construction projects as of June 30, 2010. The projects are being financed with
Virginia Public School Authority bonds issued by the local government and school capital funds. At year
end, the School System’s commitments with coniractors are as follows:

Spent Remaining
to Date Commitment
Cave Spring Elementary $ 5044606 $ 2,159,513
Green Valley Elementary 4,969,396 2,248,219
Mason's Cove Elementary 1,643,537 8,240,070
Mount Pleasant Elementary 5,508,561 1,513,444
William Byrd High 7,878,816 3,478,223

(7)  Deferred and Unearned Revenue

Deferred and unearned revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for
-which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. To comply with the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 33, assets and deferred and unearned revenue related to certain non-exchange transactions are recorded in
the basic financial statements. Deferred and unearned revenue as of June 30, 2010 is comprised of the

following:

Governmental Governmental

Funds Activities

Sales tax $ 1,414,852 b -
Tuition 91,110 01,110
Grant revenue 22,768 22,768
Internal services revenue - 1,523,888
Total deferred revenue $ 1,528,730 h 1,637,766

¢ Deferred sales tax - Deferred revenue of the School System representing June sales taxes collected by
the state in July and remitted to the School System in August.

 Deferred and unearned tuition — Deferred revenue representing tuition for online courses collected in
June for programs to be conducted in July and August.

¢ Deferred and unearned grant revenue - Deferred grant revenue representing grant receipts of the
School System in excess of current grant expenditures.

e Unearned Internal Services revenue - Uneamed revenue in the Internal Service Funds representing the
premiums collected in June for July insurance coverage.
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(8) Capital 1eases

®

During fiscal year 2007, the School System entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the
acquisition and installation of energy management equipment. Under the lease agreement, the School System
pays annual rent representing principal and interest payments at 3.9725% over a lease term of ten years. This
lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value
of the future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. Amortization of the leased equipment is
included as part of deprematlon expense over 10 years.

During fiscal year 2009, the School System entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the
acquisition and installation of internet filtering equipment and software. Under the lease agreement, the
School System pays principal and interest of $38,173 over the lease term of four years. This lease qualifies as
a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments as of the inception date. Amortization of the leased equipment is inciuded as part
of depreciation expense over four years.

The assets recorded in connection with the capital lease obligations incurred are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Asset:
Furniture and Equipment $ 3,686,574

The future minimum lease payments under the capital leases as of June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Year Ending June 30
2011 460,435
2012 473,103
2013 447978
2014 - 461,418
2015 475,260
2016 489,517
2017 504,203
Total minimum lease payments 3,311,914
Less: Amount representing interest (476,409)
Present value of minimum lease payments 2,835,505

Risk Management

The School System is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; the health of and injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School
System maintains self-insurance Internal Service Funds for health insurance benefits, workers’ compensation
claims, and laptop computer loss claims. The School System believes that it is more cost effective to manage
certain risks internally rather than purchase commercial insurance.
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Risk Management — The School System established a self-insured Workers® Compensation program on July
1, 1990. Premiums are paid into the Internal Service Fund by the General Fund and are available to pay
claims, claims reserves, and administrative costs of the programs. An excess coverage insurance policy
covers each accident in excess of $400,000 for the School System, with statutory limits. At June 30, 2010,
the School System has accrued liabilities for workers’ compensation of $697,000, based upon an estimate by
a qualified actuary. Interfund premiums are based upon the insured funds’ claims experience and are reported
as  interfund services provided and used. At June 30, 2010, the School System had cash reserves of
- $1,422,688 for workers® compensation to cover school employees.

Technology Reserve -- On July 1, 2003, the School System established a self-insured program for claims
arising from the loss or damage of student laptop computers. Student computer use fees and computer
warranty reimbursements are paid into the Risk Management Internal Service Fund and are available to pay

. claims, claims reserves, and administrative costs of the program. At June 30, 2010, the School System had
cash reserves of $718,455.

Health Insurance — The School System implemented a self-insured health insurance program on July 1, 1990.
Monthly contributions are paid into the Internal Service fund from all other funds and school employees.
These contributions are based upon estimates from the claims processor that should cover administrative
expenses, stop loss insurance premiums, and claims. An excess coverage insurance policy covers each
individual’s pooled claims in excess of $200,000. At June 30, 2010, incurred but not yet reported claims for
the School System are estimated to be $1,199,074. Interfund premiums are based upon the employees within
that fund that are enrolled in the plan.

Unpaid claims are included as claims payable on the statement of net assets. Changes in the balances of
claims payable liability during the past two years were as follows:

Risk Technology Health
Management Reserve Insurance Total

Unpaid claims, June 30, 2008 $ 717,000 $ - 8 1,214,525 % 1,931,525
Incurred claims (including IBNR and

changes in estimates) 318,354 151,551 14,182,087 14,651,992
Claim payments (338,354) (151,551) {14,137,790) (14,627,695)
Unpaid claims, June 30, 2009 697,000 - 1,258,822 1,955,822
Incurred claims (including IBNR and

changes in estimates) 364,371 404,717 13,432,688 14,201,776
Claim payments . (364,371) (404,717) (13,492,436) (14,261,524)
Unpaid claims, June 30, 2010 $ 697,000 $ - 8 1,199,074 § 1,896,074

In addition to the self-insurance program, the School System carries commercial property, casualty, and auto
insurance, surety bonds, fiduciary insurance, and dental insurance. There were no significant changes in the
coverage levels of these policies this year. In the past three fiscal years, settled claims have not exceeded any
of these commercial policy limits.
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(10) Defined Benefit Pension Plan
A. Plan Description

The School System contributes to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), an agent and cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System
(System). Professional and non-professional employees of the School System are covered by the VRS.
Professional employees participate in a VRS statewide teacher cost-sharing pool, and non-professional
employees participate as a separate group in the agent multiple-employer retirement system.

All full time, salaried permanent employees of participating employers must participate in the VRS.
Benefits vest after five years of service. Employees are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age
65 with 5 years of service or at age 50 with 30 years of service for participating employers payable
monthly for life in an amount equal to 1.7 percent of their average final compensation (AFC) for each
year of credited service. Benefits are actuarially reduced for retirees who retire prior to becoming eligible
for full retirement benefits. In addition, retirees qualify for annual cost-of-living increases limited to 5%
per year beginning in their second year of retirement. AFC is defined as the highest consecutive 36
months of reported compensation. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the
Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to
the General Assembly of Virginia. The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A
copy of that report may be obtained by writing to the System at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, Virginia
23218-2500 or accessing their web site at hitp:/www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2009-Annual-
Report.pdf.

B. Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to contribute 5% of
their annual salary to the VRS. The School System has assumed this 5% member contribution. - In
addition, the School System is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund its

" participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the statute and approved by the VRS Board
of Trustees. The School System’s contribution rate for professional employees for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010 was 14.85% of the annual covered payroll for the first nine months of the fiscal year and
5.0% for the last three months (including the employee share of 5% paid by the employer). For the three
years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008, total employer and employee contributions made to the VRS
statewide teacher pool for professional employees by the School System were $8,593,714, $11,951,073,
and $12,123,013, respectively, and represented 14.85%, 14.89%, and 16.46% of annual covered payroll
of $71,434,718, $77,235,026, and $73,424,845, respectively. The School System’s contribution rate for
nonprofessional employees was 9.21% of annual covered payroll (including the employee share of 5%
paid by the employer).

C. Annual Pension Cost
For fiscal year 2010, the School System’s non-professional employee’s annual pension costs of $266,811

under the VRS agent multi-employer plan were equal to their required and actual contributions as
follows:
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Three Year Trend Information — Virginia Refirement System

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of
Ending Cost (APC) APC Contributed
June 30, 2010 $ 266,811 100%
June 30, 2009 302,343 100%
June 30, 2008 409,593 100%

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2009, the School’s most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 105.89% funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $27,075,002, and the actuarial value of assets was
$28,670,508, resulting in an overfunded actuarial liability (OAAL) of $1,595,506. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $6,735,037, and the ratio of the OAAL to
the covered payroll was (23.69%). The schedules of funding progress, presented as Required
Supplementary Information following the notes to the basic financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative
to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation using the entry
age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.5% investment rate of return,
(b) projected salary increases ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year, and (c) 2.5% per year cost-of-living
adjustments. Both the investment rate of return and the projected salary increases also include an
inflation component of 2.50%. The actuarial value of the Roanoke County Public Schools’ assets is equal
to the modified market value of assets. This method uses techniques that smooth the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of assets over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial liabilities are
being amortized as a level percentage of payroli on an open basis within a period of 20 years or less.

{11) Other Postemplovment Healthcare Benefits

From an accrual accounting perspective, the cost of post-employment health care benefits (OPEB), like the
cost of pension benefits, generally should be associated with the periods in which the cost occurs, rather than
in future years when it will be paid. In adopting the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting for
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the year ended
June 30, 2008, the School System recognizes the cost of post-employment health care in the year when the
employee services are rendered, reports the accumulating liability, and provides information useful in
assessing potential demands on the School System’s future cash flows. Recognition of the liability
accumulated from prior years is being phased in over 30 years, commencing with the 2008 liability.

A. Plan Description

The School System provides post-employment health care benefits through a single-employer defined benefit
plan. Employees are eligible for this benefit if they retire after the age of 55 with at least 10 years of service
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and 12 months enroliment in the School System’s group health plan. The benefits, employee contributions,
and employer contributions are governed by School Board policy and can be amended by the School Board
through board action. Required supplementary information and trend information are inciuded in the School
System’s financial report and consequently, there is no separately issued report.

The School System contributes up to $2,500 per year towards the total medical premium for each eligible
retiree for up to five years afier retiring under the early retirement work program. All health care benefits are
provided through the School System’s self-insured health plan. The benefit levels are the same as those
afforded to active employees. Benefits include general inpatient and outpatient medical services; mental,
nervous and substance abuse care; vision care; and prescriptions. Once a retiree reaches age 65, Medicare
becomes the primary insurer and the School System’s plan becomes secondary. The total retiree medical
premium is calculated as a blended rate based on the medical claims of all active and retired participants
resulting in an implicit subsidy that benefits the retiree with a lower cost medical premium.

B. Funding Policy

The School System currently pays for post-employment health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. For
the year ended June 30, 2010, the School System paid approximately $1,814,000 in health care benefits,
including $516,119 in monthly health insurance premium payments for 215 school retirees. Expenditures for
post-retirement health care benefits are recognized on a monthly basis as the employee premium becomes
due.

C. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Asset)

The School System had an actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of July 1, 2009 to determine the
funded status of the plan as well as the employer’s annual required contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010. The School System’s annual OPEB cost (expense) of $1,726,490 was equal to the ARC
for the fiscal year. The School System’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed
to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation (asset) for 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Beginning Annual Percentage of Ending
Year OPEB OPEB Employer  Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Obligation Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation (Asset)
June 30,2010 § 60,000 $ 1,726,490 $ 1,814,200 105.08 % § (27,710)
June 30, 2009 60,000 1,717,062 1,717,062 100.00 % $ 60,000
June 30, 2008 - 1,678,000 1,618,000 60,000

96.42
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(12)

The net OPEB asset as of June 30, 2010 was calculated as follows:

Annual Required Contribution $ 1,726,428
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 2,400
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (2,338)
Annual OPEB Cost 1,726,490
Contributions Made 1,814,200
Decrease in Net OPEB Obligation (87,710)
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 60,000
Net OPEB Asset, End of Year $ (27,710)

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future

‘employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the

plan and the annual required contribution of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to basic financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
prospective of the calculations.

The required contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 2009 actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included 4.0% investment rate of return and an
initial annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.0% reduced by 0.50% to 1.00% each year to arrive at an ultimate
health care cost trend rate of 5.0%. Because the plan is unfunded, reference to general assets, which are short-
term in nature (such as money market funds), was considered in the selection of the 4.0% rate. The School
System funds the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis so the actuarial value of plan assets as of June 30, 2010 was
$0. The plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected

_payrolls on a closed basis over a period of 30 years.

As of July 1, 2009, the School System’s most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits was $20,262,618, afl of which was unfunded. ‘

Early Retirement Incentive Plan

The School Board participates in an Employee Extended Work Plan (the “Plan”) for eligible employees. Any
full-time employee who is a member of VRS and has ten consecutive years of full-time service in the
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Roanoke County Public School System is eligible to participate in the Plan at any time after age 55. The
School Board approves the Plan on an annual basis and it can be terminated at any time.

The School System contributes up to $2,500 per year towards the annual group health insurance premium for
employees who elect to continue their group coverage and have been enrolled in the group health plan for at
least twelve months prior to retirement. In addition, ¢ligible retirees receive 20% of their final contract salary
annually for five years in exchange for working 2.5 days per contract month (25 days for 10 month contracts
and 30 days for 12 month contracts) in the School System. During 2010, the School Board offered additional
employee incentives to retire including a one-time election for eligible retirees to retire under the Plan as of
June 30, 2010 and receive a lump sum payment of $12,500, an option to retire under the Plan with the
insurance benefits only and no work obligation, or an option to work all of the required work days in the first
year following retirement after a 30 day break in service.. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the
School System expended $3,273,354 for the compensation paid under the Employee Extended Work Plan.

Long-term Liabilities

The change in the School System’s long-term liabilities within the government-wide financial statements
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 consists of the following:

Obligation Under Compensated Claims
Capital Leases Absences Payable Total
Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 3,161,076 § 2,953,167 $ 1,955,822 § 8,070,065
Additions - 1,837,276 14,201,776 16,039,052
Reductions (325,571) (1,895,513) (14,261,524) (16,482,608)
Balance, June 30, 2010 b 2,835,505 % 2,804,930 § 1,896,074 § 7,626,509
Amount due within one year 3 347,180 §$ 845,236 % 1,423,151 § 2,615,567

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the fund financial statements for the governmental
funds, expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable available
financial resources. In the government-wide statement of activities, however, which is presented on the

- accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. The

(14)

conversion from modified accrual to full accrual reflects an adjustment of $2,894,930 for compensated
absences. Compensated absences will be paid from the General Fund.

Pollution Remediation Obligation

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations, the School System is obligated to address pollution remediation activities associated with the
commencement of asbestos abatement as part of the major renovations of Cave Spring Elementary, Green
Valley Elementary, Mount Pleasant Elementary, and William Byrd High School. Additional minor
renovations at William Byrd Middle resulted in the need for asbestos abatement as well. The School System
began the renovation projects in June 2009. As part of the planned renovations, ceiling and floor tiles
containing asbestos were removed and abated in accordance with federal regulations promulgated by the
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(16)

Environmental Protection Agency. The asbestos abatement was completed as of June 30, 2010. The total
remediation expenses paid during fiscal year 2010 were $145,838 and there were no outstanding obligations
as of June 30, 2010. Since this work was part of the planned renovations, there are no outside recoveries
expected. The change in the School System’s pollution remediation obligation within the government-wide
financial statements during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 consists of the following:

Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 65,186
Additions 80,652
Reductions (145,838)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ -

Commitments. Contingencies and Other Information

The School System may be contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims which arise in the
ordinary course of its operations. At June 30, 2010, management believes that the amount of loss, if any, is
not material to the School System’s financial position.

The School System receives grant funds, principally from the federal government, for various educational
programs. Certain expenditures of these funds are subject to audit by the grantor. The School System is
contingently liable to refund amounts received in excess of allowable expenditures. In the opinion of the
School System management, no material refunds will be required as a result of expenditures disallowed, if
any, by the grantors.

Related Parties

With the exception of the County of Roanoke, which funds a large portion of the School System budget, the
School System has no related parties.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION
OTHER THAN MANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Unaudited)

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 34,
No. 45, and No. 50, the following information is a required part of the basic financial
statements.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
{Unaudited)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Roanoke County
Commonwealth of Virginia
Federal government
Charges for services
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures: ’
Current:
Instruction
Administration
Attendance and health
Transportation
Operation and maintenance
Technology
Capital lease debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay;
Facilities
Intergovernmental.:
Roanoke County

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers:
Transfers to grant fund
Transfers to capital projects fund
Transfers to nonmajor funds
Transfers from internal service fund
Total other financing uses

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Exhibit J
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
$ 60,543,357 $ 63597776 $ 63,597,776 $ -
72,730,310 69,541,552 69,502,612 (38,940)
4,044,692 6,264,832 4,193 311 (2,071,521)
419,949 470,149 477,215 7,066
150,000 150,000 73,261 (76,709)
20,820 22,495 53,717 31,222
137,909,128 140,046,804 137,897,922 (2,148,882)
102,072,200 102,473,821 94,148,008 8,325,813
3,570,820 3,440,819 2,852,598 588,221
2,570,630 2,807,720 2,716,220 91,500
5,111,958 5,855,684 5,314,350 541,334
12,150,745 13,575,474 11,591,085 1,984,389
3,198,762 3,591,473 3,359,628 231,845
325,571 325,571 325,571 -
122,565 122,565 122,565 -
316,556 298,630 292422 6,208
4,029,369 4,029,369 4,029,369 -
133,469,176 136,521,126 124,751,816 11,769,310
4,439,952 3,525,678 13,146,106 9,620,428
- (18,387) (18,387) -
(3,188,000) (7,851,360) {7,851,360) -
(1,251,952) (2,437.836) (2,437,836) -
- 1,130,863 1,130,863 -
(4,439,952) (9,176,720) (9,176,720) -
- (5,651,042) 3,969,386 9,620,428
- 5,651,042 5,651,042 -
- 3 - 3 9,620,428 $ 9620428

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Grant Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Unaudited)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental:
Commonwealth of Virginia
Federal government

Charges for services

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction
Attendance & health
Technology

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Operating transfers:
Transfers from general fund
Transfers from capital fund

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Exhibit K

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative}
979,774 $ 868,356 3 840,006 $ (28,350)
4.468,363 10,168,266 6,465,853 (3,698,413)
- 169,825 144,668 (25,157)
5,448,137 11,206,447 7,454,527 (3,751,920)
5,448,137 11,026,362 7,141,064 3,885,298
- 221,089 230,608 {9,519)
- 33,891 23,885 10,006
5,448,137 11,281,342 7,395,557 3,885,785
- (74,895) 58,970 133,865
- 18,387 18,387 -
- (3,000) (3,000) -
- 15,387 15,387 -
- {59,508) 74,357 133,865
- 59,508 110,513 51,005
- 3 - 8 184,870 $ 184,870

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

59




Roanoke County Public Schools Exhibit L
Required Supplementary Information

Schedules of Funding Progress

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

(Unaudited)
Virginia Retirement System
OAAL
Actuarial Actuarial Over (Under) Funded as a Percentage
Valuation  Actuarial Value Accrued Actuarial Acerued Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets Liability (AAL) Liability (OAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Roanoke County Public Schools Non-Professional Employees:
June 30,2007 § 26,540,024 § 25,309,633 % 1,230,391 10486 % § 6,758,772 18.20 %
June 30, 2008 29,040,574 26,489,508 2,551,066 109.63 6,948,926 36.71
June 30, 2009 28,670,508 27,075,002 1,595,506 105.89 6,735,037 23.69
Other Postemployment Benefits
UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial Under Funded as a Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Value Accrued Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets Liahility (AAL} Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Other Postemployments Benefit Plan (Retiree Healthcare):
July 1, 2006 $ - $ 19,460,000 § {19,460,000) - % $ 85,547,858 - (22.75) %
July 1, 2009 - 20,262,618 (20,262,618) - 89,186,099 (22.72)

The School System implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Information for prior years
is not applicable,

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
See accompanying independent auditors' report,
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Roanoke County Public Schools

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

(Unaudited)

®

@

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Annual Budget Adoption — Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General, Grants, School
Nutrition, School Textbook, School Bus, and Capital funds. Additional Capital budgets are
approved by the School Board during the fiscal year as funding is identified and designated for
capital projects. Budgetary Comparison Schedules for general and major special révenue funds,
as required by GASB Statement No. 34, arc presented as required supplementary information.
All appropriations are legally controlled at the fund level. The Code of Virginia requires
adoption of a balanced budget by June 30 of each year. The School Board formally adopted the
fiscal year 2009-10 budget appropriation on March 26, 2009. On April 14, 2009, the County
Board of Supervisors adopted the original school budget. Budget revisions were approved
throughout fiscal year 2010.

The budgets are integrated into the accounting system, and the budgetary data, as presented in the
financial statements for all funds with annual budgets, compare the expenditures with the
amended budget. Al budgets are presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, the accompanying Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the General and Major
Special Revenue Funds present actual expenditures in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America on a basis consistent with the legally adopted
budgets as amended. Unexpended appropriations on annual budgets lapse at the end of each
fiscal year.

Material Violations

There were no material violations of the annual appropriated budget for the General and Grant
Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. In addition, there were no excesses of budgetary

- expenditures for the period.
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SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue IFunds

Special revenue funds are used to account for certain revenues that are restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.

The School Nutrition Fund is used to account for procurement, preparation, and serving
of student breakfast, snacks, and lunches. The primary source of revenues is receipis
derived from food sales and subsidies from the federal school lunch program.

The School Textbooks Fund is used to account for the purchase of student textbooks and
is supported primarily by state categorical revenues and a transfer from the school
general fund.

The School Bus Fund is used to account for the replacement of school buses and is
supported with transfers from the school general fund and investment income. -
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Roanoke County Public Schools Schedule 1

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010
School School School
Nutrition Textbooks Bus Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 447353 $ 362399 § 739,138 § 1,548,890
Investments 428,111 346,811 707,344 1,482,266
Accounts receivable 793 6,184 1,178 8,155
Due¢ from other governments 55,980 - - 55,980
Inventory 88,849 - - 88,849
Total assets $ 1,021,086 $§ 715394 § 1,447,660 $ 3,184,140
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Accounts payable $ 8637 § 99,878 § - $ 108,515
Total liabilities 8,637 99,878 - 108,515
Fund Balances
Reserved for inventorics 88,849 - - 88,849
Unreserved - designated for .
subsequent year's budget 923,600 615,516 £,447,660 2,986,776
. Total fund balances 1,012,449 615,516 1,447,660 3,075,625

Total liabilities and fund balances ~ § 1,021,086 § 715394 § 1,447,660 S 3,184,140

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 64




Roanoke County Public Schools

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:

Intergovernmental:
Commonwealth of Virginia
Federal government

{Charges for services:

Food sales
Textbook rentals and sales

Other:

Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction
Transportation
School nutrition

Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Other financing sources:
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Transfers:
Transfers from internal service fund
Transfers from general fund

Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balance
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Schedule 2
School School School
Nutrition Textbooks Bus Total

$ 83,985 % - 3 - b 83,985

1,886,591 - - 1,886,591

3,613,045 - - 3,613,045

- 5,341 - 5,341

4,444 - 4,995 9,430

19,128 6,183 - 23,311

5,607,193 11,524 4,995 5,623,712

- 1,275,540 - 1,275,540

- - 683,421 683,421

5,615,301 - - 5,615,301

5,615,301 1,275,540 683,421 7,574,262
(8,108) (1,264,016) (678,426) (1,950,550)

- - 11,115 11,115

74,279 - - 74,279

66,806 1,561,030 810,000 2,437,836

141,085 1,561,030 821,115 2,523,230

132,977 297,014 142,689 572,680

879,472 318,502 1,304,971 2,502,945

$ 1,012,449 § 615,516 § 1,447,660 $ 3,075,625
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Roancke County Public Schools Schedule 3

Buadgetary Comparison Schedule
Special Revenue Fund - School Nutrition

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 Variance with
' Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmentat:
Commonwealth of Virginia $ 75,000 8 75,000 § 83,985 b 8,985
Federal government 1,390,000 - 1,706,259 1,886,591 180,332
Charges for services 3,950,000 3,950,000 3,613,045 (336,955)
Other 40,000 40,000 23,572 (16,428)
Total revenues 5,455,000 5,771,259 5,607,193 (164,066)
Expenditures:
Current:
School nutrition 5,521,806 6,791,816 5,615,301 1,176,515
Total expenditures 5,521,806 6,791,816 5,615,301 1,176,515
Excess of expenditures over revenues (66,806) (1,020,557 (8,108) 1,012,449
Other financing sources:
Transfers:
Transfers from internal service fund - 74,279 74,279 -
Transfers from general fund 66,806 66,806 66,806 -
Total other financeing sources 66,806 141,085 141,085 -
Net change in fund balance - (879,472) 132,977 1,012,449
Fund balance at beginning of year - 879,472 879,472 -
Fund balance at end of year $ - § - § 1,012,449 h 1,012,449

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Roanoke County Public Schools Schedule 4
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Special Revenne Fund - School Textbooks

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

Commonwealth of Virginia $ 1,150,884 - 3 - $ -
Charges for services 10,000 10,000 5,341 {4,659)
Other’ . 9,000 9,000 6,183 (2,817)

Total revenues 1,169,884 19,000 11,524 {7,476)
Expenditures:
Current:
{nstruction 1,580,030 1,580,030 1,275,540 304,490
Total expenditures 1,580,030 1,580,030 1,275,540 304,490
Excess of expenditures over revenues (410,146) (1,561,030) (1,264,016) 297,014
Other financing sources:
Transfers:
Transfers from general fund 410,146 1,561,030 1,561,030 -
Total other financing sources 410,146 1,561,030 1,561,030 -
Net change in fund balance - - 297,014 297,014
Fund balance at beginning of year - - 318,502 318,502
Fund balance at end of year _ $ - 5 - % 615,516 $ 615,516

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Special Revenue Fund - School Bus
For the Year Ended June 39, 2010

Revenues:
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Transportation

Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Other financing sources:
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Operating transfers:

Transfers from general fund

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

See accompanying independent auditor report.

Schedule 5
Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)

- - 8 4,995 $ 4,995
] ; 4,995 4,995
810,000 2,114,971 683,421 1,431,550
§10,000 2,114,971 683,421 1,431,550
(810,000) (2,114,971) (678,426) 1,436,545
- - 11,115 11,115
810,000 810,000 810,000 -
810,000 810,000 821,115 11,115
- (1,304,971) 142,689 1,447,660
- 1,304,971 1,304,971 -
- - 8 1,447,660 $ 1,447,660
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CAPITAL FUNDS

Capital funds are used to account for the financing of capital outlay for construction and
technology. Revenues are primarily from bond issues and allocations from the Major
Capital Reserve maintained by the School Board. Major expenditures represent capital
outlay, construction, and rencvation of school facilities.

69




Roanoke County Public Schools
Budgetary Comparison Schedute
Capital Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Unaudited)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Roanoke County
Commonwealth of Virginia
Federal government
Charges for services
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction
Administration
Operation and maintenance
Technology
Capital outlay:
Facilities
Intergovernmental:
Roanoke County

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Proceeds from sale of property

Special item - sale of building
Operating transfers:
Transfers from general fund

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

Schedule 6
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
25,000 $ 25,000 b 25,000 5 -
804,000 882,759 882,729 30
1,132,260 1,132,200 605,207 526,993
- 168,516 168,516 -
- - 11,741 (11,741)
. - 83,774 (83,774)
1,961,200 2,208,475 1,776,967 431,508
804,000 882,759 882,729 30
- 85,260 2,191 83,069
1,132,200 1,636,727 916,545 720,182
- 1,418,963 1,172,561 246,402
25,000 16,180,899 356,996 15,823,903
- 6,667,246 6,667,246 -
1,961,200 26,871,854 9,998,268 16,873,586
- (24,663,379) (8,221,301) (16,442,078}
- - 361 (361)
- 2,000,000 2,000,000 -
- 7,854,360 7,854,360 -
- 9,854,360 0,854,721 {361)
- (14,809,019) 1,633,420 (16,442,439
- 14,809,019 14,809,019 -

g -

3 16,442439

$  (16,442,439)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of services provided by one
department to other departments of the School System, on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Health Insurance Fund is a self-insured fund used to account for health care costs
for employees electing the Anthem group program.

The Dental Insurance Fund is a fully insured fund used to account for dental care costs
for employees electing the Delta Dental group program.

The Risk Management Fund is a self-insured fund used to account for workers’
compensation costs for employees injured on the job.

The Laptop Imsurance Reserve Fund is a self-insured fund used to account for the
repair and replacement of laptop computers under the Technology Initiative program
implemented by the School System.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2019

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
~ Claims payable

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Habilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Schedule 7

Laptop

Health Dental Risk Insurance

Insurance Insurance Management Reserve Total

¥ 13,216,376 § 64,354 §  2,1079% § 773,826 16,162,592
1,263 165 12,484 4.236 18,148
13,217,639 64,559 2,120,480 778,062 16,180,740
8,938 225 792 59,607 69,562
1,159,074 - 224077 - 1,423,151
1,507,067 16,821 - - 1,523,888
2,715,079 17,046 224 869 59,607 3,016,601
- - 472,923 - 472,923
- - 472,923 - 472,923
2,715,079 17,046 697,792 39,6067 3,489,524
10,502,560 47,513 1,422,688 718,455 12,691,216
§ 10,502,560 § 47,513 § 1,422,688 § 718,455 12,691,216

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Roanoke County Public Schools Schedule 8
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Laptop
Health Dental Risk Insurance
Insurance Insurance Management Reserve Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for services § 15,069,452 § 1,190,175 § 350,000 % 147,728 § 16,757,355
Warranty revenue - - - 187,880 187,880
Total operating revenues 15,069,452 1,190,175 350,000 335,608 16,945,235
Operating expenses: .
Claims 13,432,688 1,186,243 364,371 404,717 15,388,019
Administrative charges 29,303 - - - 29,303
Total operating expenses 13,461,991 1,186,243 364,371 404,717 15417322
Operating income (loss) 1,607,461 3,932 {14,371} {69,109) 1,527,913
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Intergovernmental (175,024) “ - - (175,024)
Interest and dividend income - - 82,644 3,607 86,251
Total nonoperating revenues
{expenses), net (175,024) - 82,644 3,607 (88,773)
Income (loss) before transfers 1,432,437 3,932 68,273 (65,502) 1,439,140
Transfers out (1,205,142) - - - (1,205,142)
Change in net assets 227,295 3,932 68,273 (65,502) 233,998
Total net assets at beginning of year 10,275,265 43,581 1,354,415 783,957 12,457,218
Total net assets at end of year 8 10,502,560 § 47513 § 1,422,688 § 718,455 § 12,691,216

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Roanoke County Public Schools Schedule 9
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Tnaternal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Laptop
Health Dental Risk Insurance
Insurance Insurance Management Reserve Total

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from interfund services provided 3 15,089,273 § 1,190,349 § 339,307 $ 148,308 $ 16,767,237

Payments to suppliers (29,698) - (5,575) - (35,273)

Payments from suppliers - 55 - 55,472 55,527

Claims paid (13,492.436) (1,186,243} (364,371) (404,717) (15.447,767T)

Other receipts 45,939 B - 187,880 233,819

Other payments - (540) - - (540)

Net cash provided by {(used for) operating activities 1,613,078 3,621 (30,639 (13,057) 1,573,003
Cash flows to noncapital financing activities:

Intergovernmental (175,024) (175,024)

Transfers to other funds (1,205,142) - - - (1,205,142)

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities {1,380,166) - - - (1,380,166)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest and dividends - - 82,644 3,607 86,251

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 232,912 3.621 52,005 (9,450) 279,088
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 12,983,464 60,773 2,055,991 783,276 15,883,504
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ 13,216,376  § 64,394 § 2,10799 § 773,826 3 16,162,592

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 1,607,461 $ 3932 § (14,371) § (69,109) § 1,527,913
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 19,821 174 (10,693) 580 9,882
Accounts payable (395) 55 (5,575) 55,472 49,557
Claims payable (59,748) - - - (59,748)
Deferred revenue 45,939 {540) - - 45,399
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 5 1,613,078 § 3621 % (30,639) % {13,057) § 1,573,003

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

74




FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for the financial resources held by the School System
in a trustee capacity.

The Student Activity Fund is used to account for the financial resources held by the
School System for the students.

The Regional Alternative School Fund is used to account for the financial resources
held by Roanoke County for the regionally operated alternative school program.
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
June 30, 2010

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

Schedule 10
Student Regional Total
Activity Alternative Agency
Fund School Funds
$§ 2,153,241 $§ 115082 § 27268323
$ 2,153,241 § 115082 $§ 2268323
- 115,082 115,082
2,153,241 - 2,153,241
$ 2,153241 $§ 115082 § 2268323
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Roanoke County Public Schools Schedule 11
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds -

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Student Regional Total
Activity Alternative Agency
Fund School Funds
Assets
Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 1,986,017 §$§ 115822 § 2,101,839
Additions 6,974,094 42,346 7,016,440
Deductions (6,806,870) (43,086) (6,849,956)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 2153241 § 115082 § 2,268,323
Liabilities
Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 1,986,017 §$ 115,822  $ 2,101,839
Additions 6,974,094 42,346 7,016,440
Deductions (6,806,870) (43,086) (6,849,956)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 2153241 § 115082  § 2,268,323

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 77
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Statistical Section (unaudited)

This part of the School System's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the School System's overall financial position.

Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the School System's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 80 - 83

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the School System's
most significant local revenue source. 84 - 88

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the County's current levels of outstanding debt and the
County's ability to issue additionai debt in the future for the School System. 89-91

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the School System's financial
activities take place. ' 92-93

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the School System's financial report relates
to the services the School System provides and the activities it performs. 94 - 107

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The School System

implemented GASB Statement No. 34 with the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2001; therefore,
schedules presenting government-wide information include data beginning with fiscal year 2001-02.

79




[ VLN

*Z0-1007 Teak [€0S1] UT UoNRIUsUWI[AWE £¢ "ON ULWes Sy 01 snp pepiacid ejep Jo s18a£ ouru AfUQ
‘(W QI S198SY 1ON JO JUSUIIE)S 90IN0Y

€IV T6ETS 012°T95°0b £0T°0£8° TP 0102
PSEVILSL SOS'8YL EE 68L°596'vY 6002
661°€89°L9 L¥¥'089°9T TSLTOOTY 8007
880°9,8°C9 OVZ'EPL LT 8¥8°7E1°9¢€ L00T
ELLLEE'SS 0L0°9T8°cT E0L TS PE 9007
STTF16°08 8TE°LTE 8T L68°98S°T¢E $00T
066 0t 19 0E5€L8' Y1 09%°L9T 1€ #00T
¥99°080°SH 68L°658'CT SL8°9TTIE €002
0G8°8LL'EY $ Ly8SIVCl $ 600°€9€°IE $ 700T
81388y 19N PRIDLISAIUy  199(T PoIR[SY JO IBN
[0l ‘spessy [ende)

Ul PaIsaAl]

(Sununoooe Jo sIseq [enIooe)

SIBd X [BISL] SUIN ISBT

(poyipneun) jusuoduro)y Aq 19SSV 19N
S[00T[2S I[N J AJUNo)) IYoUuBoY

30



“Z0-100Z T2k [eosiy ur uoyeusma(diul ¢ "ON USRS SVD 03 anp paplaoid elep Jo s1eak suu LU0

650°9L9°€C $ SSITTEO'TL  § [IT°208°€ ¢ SIE£RESS $ SYSETVL § SETELLY § 9ZEWS0'T $ R08°LOET $ 86LLEEY $
TH8PLS 8L pTTIELPEL €97 L1 1TE POEOFELIT z08'87T011 ¥97°18L°F01 65€°088°96 £T9°6L9'V6 £F9E0E'88

- (80L°p6) - - - - - - -

- OETILTS 000°801 (80g°LLE) - - - - -
£0€°L8E SOT°0SL TESELT'T eF98LTT $L9°819°T [L1°0bF 8TTOLT TZELYE 18L°L1E
P PL9 £91°s 81E°LS - - . - £5T%T $o1°1
0TISHE'ES 96T TEYHY 08T°198°CS F60°161°98 £16789°6F 055°659°LY THLOLOOF FR19TH8E 981°12T'¢E
OLL LGS €9 ZEI'LOT O A RWATN SEE°LPL 09 F1T5T63S £4S°5L99 6EE6E5°96 ¥96'188°5S [16°59L'28
(c8L'o68%11)  (690%00L’ezly  (zerorrsil)  (6r0zoceIl) (PSZ°508°701) (6zo'g00’001)  (££0°928°C6) (SI8°TLEE8) {s+3°596°€3)
66T #80°SE 186'CEF0E 05H'89¢°0€ £TLESYLT LOT69¥ 9T LB6BERET £05°¢9T°IE SO LEL'6T £53°68CCT
5E6TIST OTF'8IET S6ITET'T FrS950°1 0£6'560°T SI£980°L S COT'I oI9°F0T'T ZTE09E'1
SSSELG'RT 0TESOP T 2EL'699'pT 90T'E68° 1T 6L0°180°0T 661 L69°8F SELOPI9L 9I1651'ST PETEEC LT
or0'cigE S68°06L°E £9F°F99°E 01L'88L'¢ EFP0E9°E 6¥1°69¢°E TLOEOT'E SESTER'T FIF816'T
685°7L1 6v' 098°01 cE8'g 99¢°L $8E°08 046921 LTE'LTI [REAA

- - - - - - - - ¥£6'9

- - - - - - - 9411 orTY
SLL'E 8TLT 01z - 61y - ! - SLI'9
86£°908 gELCS8 064962 870806 OvToLY 69°6E9 +£6'989 SSTTEY LYEDEY
T80°186'6¥ [ 059°SE1HS 1 Z09'BLEBT] TLE'GSE6ET 19%'FLT6E1 9T0'LP8'ECl  § 99686911 0o 6T ETL Z0L55T901
[T 7a T1E°CET 785 I¥1 - - - - - - .
6£9°148°01 G9E6TL Y 69 6TH'E 69£¥06°T 89EF09T 69EPOET TLY'SPYC 965585 965°$85°C

- ] - 855°655°C £hrT86 1L5°6L9 S1E'T8T 8PSGLE £TH'598 900°L¥FS
SPSTTO'S €0L°p68°S SEYOLE'S 091'861°s TSL'ROLY 60595 LOO°LZOF £EE696E Z16'GEL'E
1ZETIS T19°p5LS PeELISS OLS €69 9£1°1£9° PES'SLY'E r99'PLE'T TI6°0rE1 -
£00'8LETT P88°3EITL 1£8°0L6°01 6TTRSE'T1 FOL°589°01 LISLLTOT 6¥H'SST0I 3L1'508°6 601°081°6
BLO'EER'S L59°611°9 TSI°L009 198°L1L°8 181°661°S 6SH°LEO°S L91°85S°y SPPE0E Y L6E'S8TY
810167 G6ELS16T 60L°096'C 1#0°929°C $60°652°T 787'810°¢ 018192 6LLSGE'T AR A
£T5'8L8°T SETLED'E 00£°3¥T'E 1+ T0E°E [€1°€59°¢ 0L6°L50°C 9b£'89L°T 08€°086'T 9TO'GELT
QT ESE P01 9ZTEIFELl  § TREOST'LOL § BSHPLSTOL & £98°195°S6 $ 195°9€1°T6 $ 088°990°L8 § S0V ETE VS § ZESBIE08 $

0102 6002 200T L00T 9002 S00Z r00Z £O0T 00T

Jeaf —.mqu

TIMEL

(g HQIYXE) $INIANSY JO JUSWAIRS [20IN0S

§]0s8E 19U W SFURHD

SJ9SSE 121 Ul

5a5uweLyo Jo10 pUE [215UST [R10],
asuadxa UOHRIPAWISL UOHINI[O]
{00198 (woiy) o) pajenop [ede))
SNOAUR[[ISTIA
syesse [eiTden Jo 9]BS U0 UED
PlE Blelg

funosy oyoueoy] W0 UM
ISJOSSE 390 U sa5uL
IIU0 PUR SINUIAIT [BIIUID)

asuadxs JoN
5aNUsARI [BI0],
seonnquos pue sjueid (mides
SUONNQLIUECD puE sjueis Suneiadg
UONLINY 0025
souBUSIUTEl 79 SuopRIad0)
uonepodsusz ],
1I[al] 7§ FOUEPUNY
ToNeNSHITIPEY
UOYONI]SUE
132014135 10§ SafrRl)y
isanuaAadr weiosg

sasusdxa je1oL

1saI19uL 3ses] jende)
$8SIRLY 1910 pue 1S31U]
sanoe]
QORIINT [COYIS
Agojouyoa],
SOUBUMUIEML 79 SUoTRIRAO
uonetodswery,
1p[esy] 7§ SouepusHy
UoMIRISINWpPY
UOTIILSUT

sasuadxy

(Sununoane fo siseq EnIOIE)

SAEIX [BISLY IMIN ISE]

(pMIpnEUn) $3IS8Y JIN Ul SIBUBYD)
s[ooYag Nqnd L1uno)) ouroy

81



"70-1007 1294 Teosy w uonejmewa[dwr ¢ 'ON USRS GSVD 0) anp papraoxd viep jo sieak ouru A[uQ

(O 1quyxg) pung TeIOUSD - 199US 0Ue[Rq P0MOS
"SISATRUY PUE UOISSNOSI(] S, uswageur]y ul paure|dxa

ST SpUNJ [BJUSUILISAOS ISUIO [[€ PUE Uy [e1oua o) JO SOUB[E] PUNY [£10] UL 9SBAIOUT 3T, ()

vYE6TOL'6T  0E8'ELT91 961°1L1'E 806°LST 8TF079°6 06Z°1L9°T 98€°SL9%9 TSLELT 010T
LLY'TTH'LT  BES'TELY] EELEBYT 90T°LOT Tr0'1S9°S 000°000°T LOOTLY Y SE0'6LT 600T
TTEGRT'0OT  TWB'089°L 16€7E6°T 686695 £90°88T°L 000°000°C 875018y SIS'ILY 800T
IPL°€8ETT  651°790°8 L18°TT8°1 $9L°86¥°T £€8°T6T°8 000°00€°T TLT°€590 799°6¢€ LOOT
LOLSTE'TT  98L°90L'S LST'LEL'T ¥T81LS 8L6°T8S L - 6S6'E6T L €TH'68T 9007
$SLET8’8 SLOTIT'L P9 l6F'1 950°1TT L89°68¢°C - 905°6TT’S 181°9G1 c00T
L6ETLY'S PLY 8700 6€0°1L1°C #8859 FTS'0L9E ¥SL'695'E - 0LL‘00T #00T
FPELPLS O ST 'LYSY S60°LES'T 718681 9ST1°061°Y 168°811°% - SOE‘IL £002
TSTLIYL § TPE'LSSY $ 016650°C $ - EEOLFOY  $ 6LT'800Y - $ PSE6E $ 00T
[e10l. s1oeforg ende) anuoAsy Je1oadg paslasay [eol, peleudisapuy  pereusisa(] PoATRSIY
paAIzsaIuN) paAIRSaIUN paAlIasaIun)
$pUNg [ENDTILDACD YO [TV pun,] Jersusmn)
(Buryunoooe JO SISEQ [BIIOR PIIJIPOW)
SIBA X [UIST 2UIN )5e]
(payipneun) spuny [EJUSWUIIACS JO ddUe[eyg punyg
£ 9[qeL

S[00YS ANqNJ A)UR0)) HOUBOY .

82



“Z0- 1007 T8aK |Bosty ul uopepuswaldul ¢ 0N JUAWAE)S GSYD @ anp papiacid vlep O SIeok s AU
(¢ NQIUXE) SPUN] [ENUSWUIIAOY) - d1e[eg pung ur seBueyy) pue samyppuadxy ‘sanusasy] Jo JUSWSIE}S (901105

saouejeq puny ur aBuey)

{s2sn) $20n0s FuIduBUL IS0 [BIOL

s10sse [E1den Jo ofBg
sTuraes Fuipunjoal WOy spaanoig
1q9p JO 20UBASS]
19U ‘SIAJSUBIL
:(5951) §32In05 SATIUEUIY LIYIQ

saxnpipuadxe (1opun) 1040
sanuaAal Jo {AoUSIDIFIp) S820RY
saanIpuadxa (mo
Auno;y 9youLoy
JejuStIIaACS U]
SRt
Aepno jerdesy
1521071
ledung
1901AISS 1q2p 9sEa] [ENde])
ABojouroay
uoMNAY [001I8
gouBUAUTEL 2§ SuceIad)
uonepodsuel],
UHEIY % 3dURPUMY
UCHELSIUTPY
uonotLysuy
JUSIIRD
saampuadxy

SNUSALI [EJO],
Y0
SOUIAIAS 10] S9TI1eLD)
JUSUNLIAACS [RISpa]
BIUISIA JO Y}[EIMUOULIO.)
AJnoy 9 oue0y
ISINUIAIY

(Sununosor Jo Siseq [BNIDIR PaIfIpoW)

SAED { [BIS1T JTIN ISe]

(pa)Ipneun) SPIUN [EHBIILIIA0D 0 dduEfeq punyj u saduey))

£78°6¥T°9 FEL°009°C (681°E0T°E) 6T8LLLL £0E689°F 125°999°1 TE0°8LL ] (566°663) LLOLLTE
§19°91T'¢ 0£6°01¢ (1s5°L12) 870°981°C TTETOS (16L°8) (£28°561) (Z1£°637) S91°1
9LF 10T £o1°¢g ¥6TEL STELY EIF 1T L7882 [T £eT19e SoI°T

- - - - VLL18S - - - -

- L1§°TTl - LS0F95°E - - - - -
TPIS0Tl 05T°e81 {s¥8°067) {sse'szry (cog'or) (g19°L8) (vzo'ss1) (s9¥'c1¢E) -
STTEL0'E ¥0Z68T°S (8£9°586'27) (661°801°T) 186971t TIESLY1 FO6°EE6] (£89°019) TI6°SLTT
C06°61L 671 0£T9ETHS1 TLY LLEPS] 891 189°0F1 L6CTo5TET 166°6L9°971 SOTER6SII 80T0F6 F11 0LT'TP0'801
S19°969°01 69C°6TLY 69E°6TH C 69E°P06°T 89€°%09°7 69EFOET [LF'STPT 965°685°T 065685 T
81¥°6+9 689°3€1°T 68Y°£95°6 SELELI'R EPL6TE 095 pr6°T 9ES°STII FTLIELEL L9T79t8°1
$9G°ZEL ZIezel 785°TH1 - - - - - -
10L5°5T¢ 059°082 88 PYT - - - - - -
$L0°9SS Y 1LE°99L°S 81TLIS'S PSLETL'Y 97T 6E5°E PrI‘E0sE S9TTS6'T TI60VT1 -
[0€°519°S £16°588°S T88°LYL'S 796°161°S LETHOL Y 685°TSEY 0TSHT0Y 001°196°€ 96 9TLE
0£9°L0STT F6E°SZ1TL FESTLOTT LLT'SS0°TT LOT'SOL 0L Z8ES0E01 LST'IPICT FEPLSO0T 005 FET6
[LL°LBE'S L58°809°¢ LEF'STOD 80€°7SYS L9S'E0TS FLTR6S'S LETR6¥'Y SFTOLY'Y $80°588°p
8T89F6°C FrS816°T 16£°186°C 165°LP9°T 150°79T°T 166°850°C LLETTET E8F 6E0°E OLELI6T
68L¥58°Z ESE000°E LEOTITE 1€9°90£°¢ 129°LES'E 806°990°¢ 95L159°T 691°€00°¢ 95C°0YLT
IFELPF'E0T SLE6FSIIT  SEE9IL90] 189°80°Z01 L1£8LE°S6 718°5H5°T6 998°T15°58 $05°305°F8 GIZ065°08
8T1E5LTS1 PEF'STS6ST  PEBTISETISI 696°TLT SHT 8LE169°CET £0£°SSERTT 690°LLELTT SRPGZERIT ZRISIE0IT
€LTLST 88¥°06F £89°009 TEL'L9Y 18L°96% £90°81¢ LSETIE 089°LE1 SPFgTe
SRLB0VF TT0°395°F LEELSTY SLOOLY Y TTILOE Y PRLILTEE 0£L7906°¢ 798°685°E 980°LPSE
96 S I°ET 6S°STOL 709°9F6°9 18£°109°9 9L0°THED PT6TLOD STT9LE'S BLLYI Y S01°L00Y
TEEBOETTL A AR GLOOLE VL O CRLTL [¥6°T06'F9 696°09¢°19 81 Ir6°18 861°9L0°0¢ 668 CI8'LY
9LLTTHE  § TEITETYO § EITLILHS  § SEALPL'DD $SFTRS6S  § EPSI6LO°9S  § GELGESOS  § E96°I18BCS  § OpOTITYFS

010T 6007 $002 £00T 9007 SO0z ¥00T €007 z00T

Iea X 1edss1q
¥ AqeL

S[00T[oS A[qnJ A3Uno)) Noueoy

83



"( mqryxd) puny [eeusn) - anpayog uosteduro)) L1eedpng 90Inog

%ECET-  {(L88°T69°01) 1970569 %0 1~ {95¢'699) 9LL°L6S°C9 0102
%I 11 9106808 667 S6T°08 %0L'0- (186°6t1) TE1°L9T' Y9 6002
%IL'T 88.°806°1 €8F°901°TL %ES'9 811°696°¢C EITLIL'Y9 8007
%0L'T1 SLITI6L S69°L6T'0L %60°¢ 12L°728°1 SE6°LYL09 L00T
%YTS ¥89°T01°¢ 0TS*$8T°29 %L6'E 1L9°6¥C°T ¥12°676°8S 900¢
%r161 I¥8°805°6 9¢8°T81°6S %bT0 0T 9E1 £75°6L9°96 S00T
%86'¢E 127°668°1 S66°€L96Y %9¢'1 S08°09L 6EE6ES9S 00T
%0T'S 8TH09¢'T VLSVLL LY %IL'S £20°S10°E PESBLL'SS £00T
%6TT- (£80v90°D OPIVIF Sy %T19 601°T+0°C 11S°€9L°TS 700T
%6L'S 919THST $ CET8LYOF $  %E8'T 799°0LE°1 $ TovTTL'er 1002

osealou] {asea1oa(y) uonendoiddy osralIu] {osea102(]) uonendorddy

U212 ommvuoﬁH ﬂmﬁﬁé Euo.Hum ummo.ﬁoﬁ H.mﬁd.ﬁd.\

Py 81818 oyoueoy Jo AJUnc)

SIB3 X IS Wd I, I8
(paypneun) punyj [BISUIS) - SIAINOS INUIAIY [0 1oley

S[00T2§ N[qny A)Uno)) ouroy

84



"S[00} pue AWRUNOEW 10] (0 €$ ‘AMedoid [euosiad 103 05 ¢§ st 911 xey Apadod [euosiod "on[eA PIssasse Jo (01§ Jod sorel Xe) Iy :S8JON

SOUIO) AIBISH [29Y ATUNO 2OURDY [90IN0E

60°'1%

098°191°15T1°01 § 00°€/0S°€S SSOYESED'S 0S8°LT1°EET S06°689°08L 00€'91.L°0TO°8 0102
SLE'CET VY01 S 00°€/05°€$ 60°1% 6L8°1S1°0T6°8 01€'¢59'vTT 1L9°6£€°99L 868°851°6T6°L 6002
L96"86T LITOTS 00°€/05°¢$ 60°1$ TTI'POL'H89°8 CSLVPRRETT LOEPOE'0ER 000°SSH'0E9°L 800T "
LETOYP'6L96 § 00°€/05°€S$ 60°1$ L6E'SE6'EE0'S 085°SH0°20T LIT668'8LL 009°066°TSO°L L00T *®
ELTILY'9E6'] § 00°£/05°€S IT°1$ LSTLLTLIF'L FIT'E19°L0T €6 T91°89L 001°96t" TH+°9 900T
LEY'6T0'91ER § 00°¢/05°€$ Zris 665 70€°T06°9 SPFPLLLOT $S9°€S0°STL 00$°9LY'696°C S00T
FOS‘EFT99L°L § 00°€/05°¢S AN LOVT86°SH9 €0ETOLBIT $00°L6T €99 001°€86°€95°S 00T
O1°6LT'L9E°L $ 00°£/05°€$ AR LS SO TP PIT0 FEL8YT60T 1€5°7£8°589 00+°09L°612°S £00T
8L0°CSE6969 § 00'€/05°€S AR SSO°E9SHRL'S 918°08T €61 6EF°6L8°959 008TOP FE6Y 7007
665°160°079°0 § 00°¢/0S°€S TS LTOOLIV6H'S FSE THE SET €L8°691°959 008°391°€H9°y 1002
aneA oy xeT, aey X8l anfeaA uopeiodio) Aradoig Ayadorg hi:=5 Y
aqexe], %ﬁo&o.ﬁm uuuqu ﬁﬁ.o.ﬁ ﬁommOmm< ITATSS ﬂmﬂOm.Ho.m ﬂn@M ﬂmoﬂ ..m
EE.OA.\ ﬁmmomﬁm \mﬁoﬁchm B9 S[gqeXeJ, [810], om@sm
ﬁopmaﬁmm
SI¥I X [BIS] US [, ISef
(payipneun) £339doag ajqBxE ], JO IN[BA [BNIOY PIJRWINSH PUE N[ A PISSISSY
991qBL BIUISI A ‘Mjouroy] Jo A)uno)) -



“Xe} s, 83j0uecy[ Jo Auncy) 9 0} UOHIPPE Ul ‘Xe) §,U0IULA JO UMOo], a1}
01 195qNs 212 UOJULA UI SUIAI] SJUIPISOI 2501} ATUQ) "90UR0Y JO A1UNOY) SY) UI PAJBOO ST [OIAN “UOIILA JO UMOT, U3 O 9s0y) are sajer SurddepraaQ
‘s10s1a30dng Jo preog L1uno)) ayouroy a3 £q Jeak o8 PIUINLIBNOP 218 $IJeL XB) §,AUn0)) oy, :s9joN

201J3() S1eISH [y AUN0)) 93{0URCY 90INOY

00°E$ - S]001 pue AunoeiAl (06 ¢¢ - Aadoad [euosiad sjqiusy, ©
'sjoo} pue Arsunyoew ‘Auadord [euosiad siqidue; o3 seijddy @

"an[eA Passasse Jo (01§ 1od SABI XBI [TV

0018 £0'0% () 00°€/0S°€S 60°'18 $rS0$ Sreos 0102
00°'1$ £0'0% (o 00°€/0S°€S 6018 19 21N SPS08 6007
00°'1$ £0°08 (o 00°€/0S°ES 6018 SPS08 SPS08 800T
00'1% £0'08 () 00°E/05°ES 60°18 S¥S°08 S¥so% LO0T
00'1% £0°08 (@ 00°€/0S°ES IT18 §SS°0% G6s'0% 900T
00°'1% £0°0$ (@ 00'E/05°€S [ANEY 096°0% 095°0% S00T
00°'1% £0°08 () 00°€/05°E (493 095°0% 095°08$ 00T
00°'1$ £0°0% ) O0'E/05°ES [ARES 095'0% 095708 £00T
00'1% S0°0% () 00°/08°€S [AREY 095°0% 095708 007
00'1$ c0'0$ ¢y 00°E/0S°ES s 095°0% 095°08 1007
TeI0], JIEH puodag JIeH 114
@ Hedoid Hedolg @ edord ( Aadoid eay FEEYR
feucsIag [ead [eucsiag [BOSE]
UOIUIA JO UMO], : ayourcy Jo £mo))
sarey] Surddepanp sajey] 199I1(]

SABIX [BISI] Ud ], Iser]
(payipneun) sayey xe |, Aodoag Surddepraa( pue aaiq
Laqe], : BIUISIIA ‘Mougoy] Jo Ajuno))

86



JueunIeds(y JUswWssassy 9)E)sH [eay AJUNOD) 190IN0g

%028V 1€T %070V 99¢ [e10L
%CC0 01 11 - SOIBID0SSY 28pNRy en|g
%EC0 6 I1 - peiiinggheniGhchtly fi:alic)eslg)
%¥T0 L Al - (3ueg [pUOHEN UOTU IS AIOWIOL) SUQ JE[[A18
%9T'0 9 Al - Aueduiony suog 29 As[puuod Iy
%970 o £l - ITT 21D 91q9ed
%0€°0 ¥ v - -ou] “A[eay] RAourRH
%ET 0 3 It - Aueduwo)) sery ayouroy
" - %61°0 01 L1 ou] [endsoyy uoi[e)
B - %070 6 31 OTT 00EE SI0IssAU] So1e)§ 15T
B - %I1T0 8 61 ssauisng 218Isq [eoy HEA-[BA
- - %120 L 61 “DU] ‘sMOpUTA, ATISe)u]
B - %CE0 9 62 ATUNUITIC,) TSN PIRUYONY
- - %CE 0 ¢ 67 xojdwo) Jwowedy Jouely digspusug
B - %S0 ¥ ir Uy ‘BIUISAL A UOZHISA
YoLL0 [ LE %510 £ ¥ (Aueduio) 198013 9y [ A[121LICY) S1UR]L Y -PI J980ry
%CL0 £ 51 %8¥°0 Z Iy T pooma|3ue ], ayouecy
%%66'[ I $6 %bT'1 I Tl Aueduion) 1omo  uenpoefeddy
anfeA passassy Juey (suor[oA) onJEA PISSISSY quey (suor[[TA) Iokedxe],
J|qexe], oNjBA pPassSISSY s[qexe], anje pIssassy
Auno) [Biox Jo a[qexe], Auno)) 1@0], 3o a[qexel
a8euaniang ofeyusorng
00T 010T
08y SABd X JUIN PUE JBI X JULIN))
(popprenn) sxadey xe], Ayredoad redrovrag
89qeL

BIUISIIA ‘OYousoy Jo Apuno))

87



Joowredo( SJINSEII], PUB ONUSASY JO IDUOISSIEI0)) AJUNO)) 2MOUBOY :90iN0g

88

%€1°96 9¢6°086° 111 - %£1°96 9€6°086° 111 LOT 68¥°911 0107
%£0°66 0S6°6LTF11 00L°67T°C %ET 96 0STHSOIT1 SPISOF'SIT 600T
%7786 8TH6TH 011 68£°086°C %LS 56 6£0°67 7 LOT ELT6TYTIT 800T
%8966 168°908° 401 S8ETOIE 25996 905719101 09T°TH1°50T L00T
%81°001 621752266 909°L9€°C %8796 £76°158°66 9756066 9007
%69°86 9TL9V0°T6 01°cE6°1 2%19°96 FTOEIT106 9S9°TLTEG S00T
%67 66 €E0°6LT°L8 LS0°08Y°C %Ly 96 9L6°86L 18 ¥I6'706°L8 00T
%16'86 08L°TLT¥8 VETLLIT %S €96 IFSF66°18 10Z°C01°S8 £00T
%1€ 66 0VSFES 6L 716°660°C %6996 9L VEY'LL LTV880°08 00T
%7966 EVLOE6'SL $ S19°8¥8°1 $ %07 L6 § 8TITROVL $ TLTBITIL $ 1007
Aad] 30 wnowy SIBO A Are] mowry Jes X {Bosy] Bi:) g
o8BudIog 1uanbesqng uf Jo aFvuasoing oY) 1o [eosig
a1r(T 01 SUOTIS[O)) [BIO], SUOT}IAIO)) AA97] 941 JO JRI X [BOSI] POIAYT] SOXE ]
3} UM Pa1as[o)

SIB3 X [€ISI] U], ISB|
(payipneun) SucndII[0) pue sHAX xe] Ap1adosg
6 91q¢ L BIUISAIA ‘9 OouBOy Jo Ljuno))



'8007 10J SeM S[QRIIEAYR UONUILIONH 53)e] "SISA[BUY SIMIOUQIT JO NEamg iy Woly awooul Jeuosiad pue swoow [euocsiad eyrded 1o
RLOYINY Jeky, erndn A WaIsoA AU 0) PALIIJSTR Sem SonTsAdl asudisius s wog ajqeded 199p 3 0T ‘T AN SATORIE
*90TAISS DI J0F Jua7) 12007y UOP[aA, ST JO 991AI0S B “TEISBA WOKY

BINLJ( SOUEUT AJUENO) SYOULCY  3DTMOF

S1'1¢ %90°0 $0S6ER°T 0102
6LFE %LO0 9L0191°E 600T
LT9E %80°0 60T°61EE 800T
¥5'6€ $ %6070 LSO95'E L00T
«EQ&O QAWaSUY 1921 JBIR
Iad Teuosiad ..Hc EB.MHQ.— Fnumm q
omﬁnuo.nom ﬁ.nmom ﬂoonum
ura]SAS 100108
TIET %ty %EET 505'68°T L98'SHY 01T - - - 098990 ETHSEOSTT PSEFO0L'SL  OET'SHYTI o010z
0E¥'T %EL'S Y%Sy'T 9L0'T9I'E 87T L8L70TT - - - 181%2s"y 10S'8FL0TT  BOE'PS6°08  8ET'00SHI 6002
666°1 %ty %ITZ 60T'61€°¢ £0E'C0F £81 - - - 998°112°¢ LP6OLE'RL FrI686°T8  ObE'ST89I 800¢
£9T°1 %9L'T %THl LSO'POS E 00£°853°€1T - - - 86¥'820°0 TZL06¥'09 0LSFTL'PT  PSEOPO'ST LOOT
91T WLET %091 - LT9SH9°8IT - - - 0£5°8880 TTLESO'SH SO8°LISST  T9S'S8IIT 900T
0ZFT %IT'E %81 - 806'S10°LTT - - - T9S°8EL’L TLT'B0L'60 1L8°18T'9T  £0T'L8T'ET $007
$6T°T %08'S %91 - PP89LO°C0T  L80°8T6°9  1C0'6E8'I 601°ZLE $65CLI8 60E668' L SOTEOL'OT  GHP'OILIST 00T
9881 %ES'Y %TLT - 800'SLT99T $8£'$96°99  LSRBBIT S6+°TE6 9799056 £60°FI'98 ¥61°668°% 86€'8E5°5T £007
6661 %ll'¥ %I0E - £96'TOFFLT 1Z0°6vL°89  FPEC'E9¥T YoO'6HY'T 859°06£°01 L6LP98'68 6P1°CTH'S 000'098'$Z 00T
9161 %Ly %L0°E - 0EL'SES 89T ITIPES'0L  OE9'POLT TE8'LZE'T  069°WLT 1T 99£°006'81 001°EFL'S 000°SS0°LT 1002
ﬁ_«&NU 2WodU] htac.nn— mumm@d JESTITLIZAOD) wﬁﬂom uﬁ—wg mowmud spucyg wwﬂom mﬁﬁom ﬁn_uD” aea A
I2d ﬁmﬁcm.—um mo u_nrmunmrﬁ Jo ~ﬂ.«&ﬁ.0 ..n.—msﬁm 950.}0& ﬂoﬁmmﬁao ﬂﬂmnﬂuo bmhvﬁmd _oo_.—um uﬂnu.aum— ﬁomumw.ﬂﬁo _aoﬁm
uwﬁ:vo.ﬁm uzﬁw A EBUﬁ mﬁ«.om _Oo_.—um —EOF Hm.-vﬂvmu LN <m.m.> vmmud m&.-vnuo
.«O owmﬂﬂouuum umﬁD Euﬁaﬁ“ao u@m.rummuﬂ..—msm womz.}ﬁuaq« ﬁ«ﬁuﬁﬁu_woo
HOURGY JO AWMQTY
SABI X |BISLY URF IS
(panpmeun) adKy, Lq 1gag Smpurising jo soney
- BT 2Iqe, BIUISIIA ‘ajouroy Jo Ljuno)

89



‘8007 JOJ SeA Q[qR[IBAR UOIJBULIOIUT 1597e] "SISAJRUY OIUIOUOOH JO NEaIng oy} WwoLf swooul [euosiad ejides 1ag

AMIOENY 1912 A\ BTUISITA TIDSO AN OU) O} POIIDJSUERI) SBM SONUARI osudIajme o) woy ojqeked 1gop o) ‘4007 ‘1 AIN[ 2411097

“OIqE[TEARTN SBM /00T STEOX [BOSI] "99IAI0S OIQNJ J0J J91us)) 10d00)) TOPd A 2T} JO 90TAIRS ® JeigeA woly uonendog

71T %EET L98'SHF 01T 098°%90°t €TF'SEO'STI FSTO0L 8L 0ET'SH9°Tl 010T
0Ev'T %8F'T 8TTLYLIOTT 181925y 10$°8¥L°0T1 R0E4S6°08 8ET09S Y1 600T
SE0T %I1T €0EE0P €81 998°117°S LY6°9LE'SL Fr1°686°C8 ot€‘STR91 800¢
¥TT'l %LE'1 EFTY6T 011 867°8£0°0 12L°06%°09 0LS*PTLYT FSPOPO°61 L00T
1€l %09'T L19°6v9'811 0£5'888°9 TTL'ESO'S9 £08°L15ST T95°681°1T 900T =4
0Tyl %¥8°1 806°S10°LTT T95°8EL°L TLTB0L'69 [L8°182°9T €0T°L8T'ET 002
0gsT %01°C L19°T¥S SEl 765°TT9°8 60E°661' VL $97°€0L9T 6YP9TL'ST 00T
860°T %LST 1LT°880°96 9Z9°905°6 £SOP1'98 ¥61°668Y 86£°8€5°ST £00T
€LI'T %9L'1 F09°0¥S 101 869°06£°01 L6LY98°6S ANYAAY 000°098°ST 00T
1L0°T $ %69°1 8C1°6L6'C6 $  069VLTIT §  89¢'0068F $§  00I'ChL’S $§  000°SSO'LT § 100T
eyden Aradoxg . e10], spuog spuog spuog 199 bi:=) 4
g J[qexe] jo Aeyopr| 100408 SNEIAYY uonedqo [eosty]
onNeA [BMOY 31eIg VSdA asea] [eIauar) _
J0 o8ejusnisg .
JUSUIIISACD) AJUNOD) - SuIpurising 193] papuog [BIoUL0)
SIBd X [BISL] WA T, Jsery
(pay1pneun) Surpueising 3G papuoyg [BIOURY) Jo soney
113198, BIUISAIA ‘Oousoy Jo Ljuno))



3OUFC) 20uEH]  AJUnoy) S{OUEeY 02IN0g

samjipuadxs [EISUNINA0G

%01 %01 %01 %01 %01 %01 %01 %01 %401 %01 Texauad Jof Aotjod sad jrwn 198
sainypuadxs

- %0K'D %OE'S Y%rT'S %EY'C %E9'9 S%E1'9 %3S %50'S %0€°L UbL L puny essusd of 2014105 192

00571 $ 0081 $ 00871 $ 0051 $ 005°C $ 005°Z $ 005°T $ 00§87 $ 005°C $ 00S°C $  wdeo sod a0y Aorjod sod yrunt xgaq

TL0°T § £L11 3 360°T $ LE8°1 $ Ovb'I $ 1€t $ ¥TT1 § cE0'T $ 0ErT § T $ enrdeo Jag =

an[eA

o4E %€ £33 %E %E %E %E %E %t %€ Spadoad 1o Soyod 1od i 3997
. anjea Mradord ajqexe;

%651 %991 %671 %00°T %ER %091 %Iyl %1T'T %3bT Y%EE'T PAsSasse 0] §g3p 19U JO onEy

STEUH] 349D O

$CI6L6T6 § POOOPSTIOL $ 1LT880°06 § LIDIPCSEL § SO6'CLOLTI § LIOSPYRIT § €PTP6TOIL § £OE'COP'E8T $ 8ST'LBLOYT § L[987SHO0IT § ajqesidde 1gap a0 [BlOL,
069°PLLTT 259°06€°01 979°005°6 ¥65°779°8 TOC'QEL'L 0£C'888°9 86+°8£0°9 0998°112°S 181725y 098'%90°F spuog ATRISIT Aje)g
89£°006°8F LBLY986S £SOFF19S 60E°66F FL TLTBOL 69 TTLESO'SY 12L°06%°09 LY6'OLESL TOS8PL'0TT  £THFSEOSTI spuog [00U2§ YSJIA
00T°EFL'S 6F1°STHS FO1°668'F T EOTEBLT 1L8°182°9T £08°L15°5T OLSYTL YT ¥rI'636°T8 SETHC6'08 PEEO0LRL Spuog SNUSASY 58]
000°CSD'LT  § 000'098°CT  § $6E'BEC'ST  § 6VPOIL'CT  § €OT'LSTHET § TOHS'SBIIT  § vEHORO'6T  § OPESTEO1  § 8LTOOSHI  § OEISHITl § spuogy uoNeSIqQ) [eIOUID)

FuIpuelSING 1Gop PPUOY [2RUAD

[00c 2002 £00Z F00T £00T 9007 £002 800C 6002 0T0T

183 [BOSI]

SIB3 A [BISL] U], Ise’]
(panipneun) uonemsioyuy Axjo 1Ga¢L

TI39%L : : BITISALA “Youeoy Jo Ayunoc))



UOISSIUIUIo,) JuatuAofdwy etuIsmA ®)
‘(uawmBissy rdng Jo 901110) 1§ Yorejy Jo sk diysrequust Ajrep sferony ©

"porepdn usaq 10U paAey (0107 PUB 6007 J0I saIndiy oy,
"$00T 40J ST S[QR[IEAB UONEULIOJUI 159187 *SISA[BUY OTWOUOIT JO NeaIng ot} WOl SWodU] [euosiad ejde) 104 )

"PAIBUINSS U] 9ARY (107 YSnong: L00g 103 samSiy oy L.
"900T 10F ST S[qE[FeA® UOHEULIOJU] [BUL] 153187 "90IAISS O[qnd I0] I10Jua)) Jd00) UOP[A A 3Y) JO BOTAISS & RISeA WOL

£9 vLY YL 6101y 916°0SLY 110°16 0107
9y 08941 610°1Y 916°0SL Y L9806 600C
8°C T08v1 610°1 916°0SL Y 0TF06 800C
9T LLLYT veeLe T9L°€0EY 70606 LO0T
8C 8TLY1 8L6°SE LET'QTT'Y 8706 900¢
e SOEYT £T8PeE 0L6°SS6°E 69t°68 £00¢
LT 6L 96T V< eS8 vPR'E 009°88 ¥00¢
4 LZT1%1 098°c¢ 897°699°¢ 005°L8 £00¢
v'e 0£6°€1 L88°CE 8TIFS9°E 00998 200t
(44 $98°¢1 98E°TE £9€°LLS'E 00808 1002
%o Ve (g /IRwIOTUH (P WOou] ¢ (STBI[OPp JO (pEonemdog IBOX
eswiodmeun Jootos JeU0sIDg spuesnoy)) [eost
virden) g awoou]
[euosIag

SIBd X [BOSI] WA, ISk
(parpneun) sonsnels aqderdoma(q
£1 dqBL BIUISIIA ‘Odjousoy Jo Ayuno)

92



d&««&iﬂg ..Sm S[qeieAR .Gmaoﬁ.oq .o.a Iofordwo yoes 107 saafofdua Jo Jequnu [erioe ‘sourepms DA eI 194 (1)

UOISSTIUTHOY) JURWAC[dWT BIMBIA 120Mog

666-00S afeALL] 6 - - - . Teuonewaiuy pmoduey
666-008 Al 8 - - - o] 30AISSI[AL Sl
666-00S aeAlld L - - - 9oUemMSU] [EMNA] OHUE[}Y
666-00S MBALL] g - - - dnoin suolyse] SWOH JACUBH
+000°1 oleAld £ - - - saLISIpU LI
- - - 661-05T AL 01 ClEN B
- - - 661-06T I ELVAR 6 dTNSH
666-005 SjeAlid 01 66v-05T ajeAllq 8 BIUR)) a8 YifeaH pue[umnos)
- - - 66%-08¢ afeALl] L ssauisng pue [suuosisd 1Sug
- - - 666-008 sjeAllg 9 Jouepy dispuaLLy
- - - '666-008 SleALld S »Fory
+000°1 "JAch) [BDO7] G +000°1 "JA0D) [BDO] 14 ajoueoy jo AumoD
+000°1 oFeALL b +000°T QJRALL] € Auedizoyy souemsu] 9jeIs[|
+000°T areAllg z +000°'1 aleAlld z (V"N Sueq eiaoyoem ALowo)) v N Sued ofed s[om -
+000°1 "JACD) FROO'T I +000°T ‘JA0D) [800T I s]00Uag 21jqng AIUno)) ajouroy
(1) seekojdmryg dmgsiaumQ yuey’ (1) seakodurg diyszeun yuey " Ishordwg
Jo JequinpN _ Jo ._ue.:s.z
1002 010t
03V SIB9X JUIN pue 183X JuIIN)
{paipneun) srolordury redowixg
¥l 2qel,

BIUISIIA ‘dYouroy Jo Ajuno))

93



S1 21qe],

1894 1262 SOUT[pRIp

Surproder 9)e)S 0} 9NP SIJEWNSI UO Paseq papIwqns 0TOZAL 307 §1 9lqel, &

'S 1 9]qe], Hoday [enuuy

s uopuamradng pue wononnsuy ‘noneonpy [ewads YuewuSSsy [1dng JO S0IJO  :90IN0g

= 00L°01 10v 61T FLY'PT 010
788°6 9¢E XA A 0S9°v1 600¢
L8Y'6 LTE 81TT . T08'Y1 800
7€0°6 £Ce TTT LLL'PT L00T
EpPE’s 0LT 0T°T 8TLYI 900¢
' 0Te 6TE°T Soc'y1 $00T
8LLL GL1 69€C 6LT'T ¥00¢T
699°L 891 TSET LTIPT £00T
pSE'L 901 €TET 0£6°€1 00T
IST°L §9 78¢€°C $98°¢l 1002

150D wawoIug JuSUI[OIug drysisquuaTy 82K
ndung afendue] uonEInpg Aeqq [E9SLT
Ing puooag B s Teroadg ofeioay
ystsuy

SIB3 X [BISI UI], Iser]
(paypneun) juswrjoruy JuIpn)g
S[00T2§ N[gng AJUNo)) [OUBOY

94



"ABP 911 JO 94,06 oEa] 1Y) SI0jeUIpIoo,) SUY adendue] pue s[edrouri]
JuRISISsy Amjuauwelq Aq papraoxd poddns Surgore) paparoul sonel 600Z-L007
“JRULIOT ST} UL 9[qB]IBAR BleD JO sIeak InoJ ATuQ)

"901[J() JOUIOSIaJ 91} Aq PaJE[No[ed SOTJel IST0Ea)} 0] SJUSpnIg :90IN0g
00°CC 00°1¢ 00'1¢ 00°CC cl
00°Ce 00'1C 00'1¢ 00°Ce i
00°7C 00°1¢ 00'1c 00°CC 01
00°TC | 00'1¢ 0012 0s°T¢ 6
00'€T - 00T 00'12 00°T¢C 8
00°¢T 00'1¢ 00°1¢C 00°CC L
00°¢T 000C 00°1¢C 00Tt 9
00°0¢ 0061 000T 00'1T S 2
00°0¢ oo.m.: 0061 00°0T 14
0061 0081 0081 00'61 £
00°0C 00°81 00781 00°81 4
006l . 00°LT 0081 0¢°81 1
006l 00°LT 00°L1 00°LI UoMERSIapUIy
0107 600T 800T L00T SPBID

SIEJ X [ISI Ino 1se|
(payipneun) 1RYoEI I, 13 SJUIPNIS JO JOGUINN]
91 AquL S[00T[2Q I[N A)Juno)) jouroy



UCHRIPAMaY PR SUNSST, JO 20UIO 190Mog

56 9 [ s6 | L6 ] ¥ | ¢6 6 %6 73 9% 88 76 8 06 L T o8 | i |19 AIOISIH 8N
98 8 |98 | 16 | e | Bu £8 98 Ll 06 0L 58 it ¥8 9/, v, | S8 | iL | 68 Aydedoap) pliog
73 6 | 6 [ 86 | 26 | v6 76 96 [f] 96 98 16 €8 06 8 6L | 96 | s¢ | 06 0051 woly A0S PLOM
6 8 | ¢ | 76 16 | 9 68 16 33 16 78 ¥6 £8 06 93 98 | 06 | €8 | €6 0051 03 A103STH PlIom
£6 S6 | €6 | $6 | 6 | 88 16 16 3 6 98 16 98 16 | ¥8 82 | 88 | v | 18 ARsTmay.)
68 v6 | 88 | T6 [ 88 | ©6 L8 €6 £8 16 6L 16 08 63 8 £8 16 | 18 | 18 Azojorg
38 v6 | 8 | v6 | 98 | 88 8 16 78 06 [ 98 1L 93 gL oL { 78 | €L | 88 30TAOG YIIRg
38 6 | 8 | s6 | 18 | &8 98 73 £3 16 18 76 L3 98 6L [ 18 | €L | ¢8 Anamoan
16 9% [ 16 | #6 | 06 | 06 38 cg 58 L8 L3 68 93 8 18 | L | v | o8 11 B1q83]Y
¥6 % | ¥6 | L6 % | 76 [ 6 98 L6 8 06 08 8 8L gL | 18 | vL | 08 1 ©IGeE]Y
76 6 | 6 | 86 | 26 | 9 76 96 28 96 38 6 18 76 16 98 | 98 | ¥8 | 88 BunLp, YSHBUR 95Ima)) JO pud
¥6 6 | S6 | i6 | ¥6 | s6 6 96 06 $6 £ 6 68 ¥6 £6 98 | 48 | z8 [ s8 WTd GSHBUH o8IR0.Y JO pug
'$7T0S ATepugaag
73 96 o6 | v6 | 06 | s6 68 ¥6 L3 6 L% 6 88 6 8 16 | 58 16 | v8 | 16 30UIDG § APLID
98 6 78 6 ¥R 6 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - SOTAT)) § SpRID)
B/ R ESEES A 78 ew [ ¢8 [ ew | 08 8 1 8L [ o8 | 9¢ 19 AT0351H § SpRID
L8 g6 [ sz | g6 | €8 | 76 LL 98 9L 76 1% 06 8. 98 7L LL TENEEED SRR § SPEHD
16 6 |68 | s | L8 i6 9% 06 16 £6 bL 18 LL 78 ¥l s8 ] 9L | 18 [ 52 | ¢8 Hurpg, Ysysug § operi)
06 6 | ] e | €8 | w6 6L £8 2/ 98 9/ 78 L 6L L9 ¥ | 69 e, | €L ] 6L AT YSIBUT § SpRID
16 6 |6 | v6 [ 76 | 6 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - JUDSALJ 0} AIOISIH § (] £ 9PRID
[ 18 iL | sl | s9 6L S 0L ¥t 89 - - - - - - - - - - (9007 UF MOT) SINEUNIE] L 3PRID)
06 6 |88 | ¥6 | 98 | 6 78 06 18 06 - - - - - - - - - - (900z w mou) Fupeay] [ opeiD
8L 8 [ [ 18 [ w2 | it - - - - - - - - - - - - - - LL8T OF AT0ISIH § ] § 9pRID
il AR 09 9 15 99 - - - - - - - - - - (9007 UT MoN) SONRIIGUIN 9 9PRID
88 % | 98 16 £8 68 ¥8 88 £8 £6 - - - - - - - - - - (9007 UL moll) SUIPESY § 2PEID)
38 s6 [ 88 | 56 | 88 | 76 88 6 8 16 8 06 8 68 6L 68 | 9 | 88 [ 52 | 06 20UAIDG § IPBIL)
06 s6 [ oe | 26 [ 88 £6 18 06 £8 33 13 03 8L 78 [ 08 1L | 92 | L9 | 8L SODEMIOIE]N G OPEIL)
38 06 | 98 1 06 | /8 | 88 68 16 68 76 16 6 | %8 | 68 | S8 | 88 | ¥8 | 06 | P8 | 68 FURIA USA0T ¢ 9pei |
06 t6 [ 2o | 16 [ 68 | 6 L8 16 L8 16 o8 06 8 06 3 88 | 8L | ¥8 | €L | 9% 14 JBHO G opeiy
88 6 [ 98 | z6 | +8 6 1% £8 LE £8 - - - - - - - - - - (9007 W msu) sonene $ SpeID
88 ¥6 | 68 | 16 | 88 €6 L8 16 93 6 - - - - - - - - - - {900F WY mat) JuTpeay § Speir
i8 6 [ 88 | v6 | €8 | 88 £8 58 8 63 58 93 98 06 6L s8 |z | 78 | €9 | 5L SOIPTOS VA
16 s6 [ 68 | z6 [ 88 16 38 t6 06 76 68 76 983 06 | 8 98 [ BL | L8 | #L | 88 i )
£6 L6 £6 56 £6 <6 76 ¥6 16 6 68 06 L8 88 8 £8 9L ¥8 [43 73 AJOJSEH ¢ 9peIn
6 96 | 638 | v6 | 638 | v6 68 6 06 16 38 63 L8 T6 £8 I8 | 08 | 58 | ZL | <% SOOEWUIELY ¢ opeit)
£3 L o | os | ¥8 | 06 08 68 ¥8 g3 LL 8L 1L SL [ st [z | 6L | s9 | #L W YsIEUY ¢ oprin
57108 Argjuomalg
VA |SdOd| VA |SdDM| VA [Sd0d| VA [Sdod| va [SdDd] va {sdDd| vA |sdD¥| VA [SdD¥| vA |sdod| va |sdod IOy
010¢ 600Z 3007 L00T 9002 S00T 00T £00¢T 700 1002
SIBIX (VIS UL, IS8T
(panpaeun) (5,7 JOS) 53105 153 T, TuFWIBT Jo sPIRpUE)S
L121GBL

S[00Y3g g A1unoy) ayouroy

96




20IJ() SIOTATDG FUIISUNOY) [OOUYDS (20INOF

605°1 178°1 L¥ST LOS $Ts SIS %08 0102 ~
605°1 128°1 9£S°T #0S LIS SIS %09 6002 o
£ZS°1 LIS°T £pS1 LOS 728 FIig %Lt 8007
1161 9151 LSS T LOS 978 $s %3 L00Z
0Z8°1 195°1 €LS'T 61¢ 0€s ¥Ts %9t 9002
8701 0£0°1 SSO°1 - 875 LTS %61 $00Z
¥T0°1 ¥20°1 £90°1 - £es 0£$ %08 #002
910°1 ¥Z0°1 €90°T - €8 TES %96 £00T
0T0°1 910°1 ee0’l - 8IS 41 %S 00T
0701 6001 SHO'I - €78 s %$S 1002
TeuonEN RTUIZIIA peuIqmoy Fumrm e feqrapn oey
sjoonog AJuno.) ayoueoy uonedronied
SABI X [ISL] U], ISe]

(paatpneun) (s, 1.VS) 5153, JUIUIIAIGIY JNSB[OYIS
81 21qeL S[00T[2G JT[qnJd AJUno)) [OUBOY



*AfITIqe]IEAR 03 anp papracld Blep Jo s1eek eulu AT
‘woneonpy Jo jusunteda(] Yim pafl) Modoy] [00Yog [ENUUY 30IMOS

9'€LTT

I'88€°7  6'19€7  1'SIE'Z  €€SILT  T1'LZTT  LOL1T  T6ll'T  (0'990T e,
8'9¢1 TSt 44 $'SeT 9°0¢1 I'PEl 9°SEl P SEl YTl UOnLINN [00Yog
0Ly 008 $0S o6¥ S8y ¢LE 0'Lg 0°¢T $'6T AZofounjoa],
AL v'9 09 0¥ 6€ oy 07 97 0T UONONAISUO))
£¢ 69 $'9 09 0L 0L 0'9 0L 6L SJUBULUTRIA] 1RO
1€ §'5E 0°¢e (g '€ 8T L'TE 6'1¢ 0T UBIISIPELY,
T'LT] 811 9 KAl 0311 0811 C8IT THTI 0611 0901 ueIpoIsny)
781 €81 081 281 T8I A 791 1'91 091 uonepodsueI], 1910
60L1 $9LT $'891 #'Z91 0191 6LST SLST §98T 6L5T IoALI(] sng
681 S8l 761 061 SLT 0'sT $6L LTk 6°T¢ YiTeaH 29 9OUBPUSY 19110y
0'6 06 06 06 9'8 06 oL 06 86 1s180[0Y24sJ [00YDS
092 8LT 6LT L¥T €T 0¥ LI EES 0zl 98NN [00YDS
- - - - 6T o€ o€ o€ 0t doyg jurig
$CL $'SL Lyl L¥L $SL 6L an 079 ¢'6¢ Argjormag
$'887 R'0I¢ 6'60¢ 6162 9°'L0E T79¢ 0'7€T 68T §'97¢ JUEISISSY [BUONONNSUT
184 0y ¢ 0 0'¢ o€ 0°¢ o€ 0t IaNIop [BI00S
£9¢ 0'sT 6'S¢ 092 0'9¢ 8T 06T $'$T 0L ueLeIqly
Vv 665 9'LS 6LS Vs 't 9'6S L'sS 6'8¥ IoJasunor) souepmsy
OESIT  LT0TT §E6I°T 88Tl SOLIlL  €VPIT  69IT'T  96L0°T  SO080°1 Ioyoea],
087 $'87 §'LT I'LZ 0'zE 0 00¢ 087 LT [ediounid JuL)sIssy
067 06T 0'6Z 0'62 067 0’67 88T 287 01 [edroung
$0T €1e L'6T 60€ L'6T §0¢ 08T €L 1'sz JOTRNSIUTWPY
LT 0t L'T L't 07 0T 07 0T 0T juapusuLadng JuelsIssy
01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 0’1 juapusjuadng
oS 0's oS 0's 0¢ 0 0 0'S oS ToquIgIA peog [00UDS
S ST s, AL sd1d 5,314 8q1d 8, J1d 8,341 841 suonIsoq
0102 600T 8007 LOOT 900T $00T 00T £00Z T00Z

SABI X [BISIH] QUIN Jse]
(pasrpneun) suonisoq (A1) yudesinby swm-ng

61 219%L

S[ooydg 21[qnJ A)Uno)) fousoy]

98



"TOT)RILIOIU] sAljeredios Jo AN[IqIssasoe o) onp pjuasaid gep Jo sieek ouru A[uQ
‘uonrzeorqnd sa1e0g ATR[ES PUR J98pNg [ENUUY 300§

6V1°TS $§ 60€°TS § 1105 $ TSI'6F $ SYTLY $ LLESY $ 9¢6°ch $ LLOTY § IEL1P Aie[eg aferoAy BIUIBHA
9s9'sy § 1CT'6r § 869°LP $ VELOY S 168'sk  § LS6SF S TELHP  $ 6EI'vy  $ €5Tew Are[eg aBeroay
S[OOYOS AJUNO,) 9OUR0Y]
%00 %0°'S %S'E %S %0y BAY  %STBAY %07 BAY %S BAY %0 pIeog [007dg Aq pasoidde
aseorou Arees Jenuny
SLY'T9  GL9'T9 ¥$6°8S SIT'LS 168°%¢ 0ST°eS 050°0$ v8E‘6Y 9L$‘8Y XeN
01T'8¢  01T'8¢ 01L°LE 01T°LE 01Z°9¢ 01£'5€ 001°VE 0§S°€E 05$°€E A 21810300(]
$68'65 586 YEI'LS §6T°SS 1£0°¢S 0€€’IS OET'8Y 68S°LY 018°9% XeN
9769t 9T6°9¢ 9TF9¢ 9Z6'SE 926'7E 920'pE 098°7¢ 0EETE 0EETE LA SIY $7 + SISRIN
879°6S  8T9'GS LO6°9S 890°¢S $08°TS €01°1§ €00°8Y YOE'LY 685°9% Xe
99.°9€  99L°9¢ 997°9¢ 99.°5¢ 99LFE 998°¢E SOLTE 8L1°TE 8L1TE I S$IY | + SIOISEN
00t'6$ 00t'6S 6L9°9¢ Or8PS 9.6C8 SLY0OS SLLLY OvI'LY 89€91 XBIN
§09'9¢  §09'9¢ SOT1°9¢ §09°S¢ S09vE $OLEE 05$°T¢ $T0°C¢E $T0°E LA SISy
808°LS  BO8'LS L80°SS 8¥CES #86°0S £8Z°6¥ €81'9Y 895°SY T8 Xe
I8¥'se  TI8YSE 786'¢€ 8FpE 78¥'cE 785°T¢ sov'ieE 856°0¢€ 856°0€ WA S $T + SIo[ayoey
085°LS  08S'LS 658°%S 020°cS 9$L'0S $S0°61 $S6°SH PhE'SY T09°vY XeN
1Z€'6e  1T¢'sE 128°%€ 12€°pE 12E'€E 12¥°2¢ 01E1E 508°0¢ <08°0¢ U SR Z[ + sIo[ayoeq
STILS  STI'LS YOV ¥S $95°7¢S 10€°0$ 0098t 005t $68°p 091v¥ XeN
000°CE  $ 000°SE  $ 00S'VE 000°p¢ $ 000'ce § 001°CE $ 000°1€ $ 00s0¢ $ 00s°0¢ wN sIo[ayoeg
0102 600T 800T L00T 9007 00T #00T €002 7007 22132
SIBIX [RISLY 2UIN Jse]
(PaNpnEENn) UONVILIOJU] AIR[ES JIIBI],
0Z dIqeL  S[0OYS AN[qng AJuno) Rjouroy

99




“Z0-1007 f824 [BISI W p£ GSVD JO uonejuswapdun 03 enp payuesaxd elep yo sreak sumr A[UQ
"SUIpEnOI 0} 20p %00°001 [enba jou Lewr safejusotad U0 s[EI01SYL

‘gpnuLio] FuIpEng 2KL1S AR UI UOLIEANPH JO Juetuiredac] 2T AQ PIST PUR Jeak yors [§ YRR JO St pygmofes diysiquusm Arep a5e19A STNQY 210N

619°8 $ 086 $ ¥SL8 $ 7T $  6LLL $  089L $ FOTL $ v’ § - vIsH  § Jrdnd sod
saunyipuadxe a8eAY
FLE T 059°v1 7081 LLLWT 8TLYI CoEyl 6LTF1 LTIPI 0£6°El WAY 1£ yosey

OIFISLHT] § LTLOSTIEL § 960°SLS6TI § 9TIIB6ZTI § PRSHLSHIT  § CEGECEDIL $ LPE'G98T0I § vI6'8T8'66 § $6T916+6 § sanypusdxs [e10],

%TE %G'E %5T %bT 96T %1T %YT %9T Y%LT

69€°6T0F 695°6TL Y 69E'6TH'E 69€¥06'T 89EF09T 69EH0ET 1LFSHPT 965°586°C 965°585°T TEIEaUIISAOZ K]

%C'0 %E0 %T0 %T0 %Z°0 %T'0 %170 %10 %[0

TTFT6T 018°0%E £9L°TTE 660°577 €L9°10T LSEBLT TO9°T11 080°L6 £15°26 SomIIoB]

%l 0 %E 0 %Z'0

9T Shl 9205 T y979vE - - - - - - 13014135 1qap sses] felde))

%LT %67 %I¢ %ST %7 %31 %0°T %00 %00

§TO°6SEE $SOTIOY Oy 0Ty 19L'9ZT°E 028°089°C EEF'S00°T F08°090°T - - A3070uyo3], m
|

%6 %68 %98 %76 %68 %6 %56 %001 %56

S80°165°T1 Y6ESTLCT 16L°T6E 11 9TL6LT 1Y SL8PTT 0T 9590°€50°01 859°I£5°6 TSLTLE'6 678°910°6 souRuUIEW 2p SUoHERdD)

%Ey %6'E %0y %6'€ %6'C %6'E %9°E %L'E %8'C

0SEPIE'S 698°00€°C P66 EET'S ¥Z5 08y S6YSLY' Y 89LORTY TIS9ILE LOT669°E £S6°€59° uonepedsuer],

%Z'T %0'T %1T %0T %0'T %L'T %E'T %TT %zT'T

0TT91LT THO0LYT 950°'15L°C S8E°SEH'T 150°292°C . FLERERT S60°L9ET LOOFLTE 89+°680°T [EaY 7 SOUBPUINY

%E'T %zTT %ST WL'T %67 %87 %YT %0°C %6T

8657768 £51°000°C 09 192°¢ TESPOEE 68€°01€°C 0L9°080E 95L"159°C 691°E00°C Y SILT UOIETSTUIUDY

%S CL %194 %S'9L Yol 'LL SO 'LL %8E LL %8'LL %¥'8L %8 8L

B00°8PIY6  § 6TS689°COT § ESILIT'G6  § ISESLEP6 § 11699888 $ 9L6°01S S8 § GHFIB6'GL % E86'966°LL § SISTOLYL § uopoMESU[

0167 6002 800Z LO0T 9007 S00T ¥00T £00¢ 00T uopoun,y

S4B { [BISL] 2uIN ISB]
(paupneun) puny [B42035) - norunyg Aq saanypuadxyg

YzoIgel SI00YDS J1[qng A)une;) ouroy



“Z0-100T 12a4 [eosy Ul p¢ gSVD JO uoneuswadul o) onp pajuasaid v1ep jo sieak sur A[u0
“BUIPUNOT 01 ANP 8400 00 [#nb3 jou Aewr sofejusatad uo Sfelc) UYL

-SE[NUIO} FUIPUN] SEIS O} UI UONEONPT Jo Justireda] 2y Aq Pest pue feak yoes | £ YOI 3o se pare[nofes diysiaquiaw Ajrep o8eioar sINAY ION

VLY 0591 08 LLLYT 8TLYY SOEpT 6LTHT CLTEyl 0E6'ST WAV 1€ PEW

6198 $ vLTG § LEL8 S 77Es § 6LLL $ 089°L § vOCL $ SHo'L $ viso $ sainipuadxs [B10]

%t %5€ %L T %tT %ET %lT %bT %07 %L _

8.7 £7€ €T L6] LLl 091 1Ll €81 981 [EIIRMIUI2A03IIU]

%T 0 %E0 %Z0 %T0 %T0 %Z0 %50 %10 %10

0T £7 Y4 ST al zZl 8 L L sompIoR,

%H0

I 8¢ Ll - - - - - oo 2314135 1q2p ases] fende)

%WLT %0'€ AR %5°T %ET %81 %0'T %00 %00

76T PLT 7T TIT 6L 0¥l 23l - - £Zojoueo].

%E'6 %68 %L'8 %T6 %68 %16 %E'6 %001 %56 p=

108 878 964, €9, 60 00L 899 90L L¥9 soURURIUIEW 79 suopesRd() —

%E %E'€ %0'f %6'€ %6€ %6'E %9'€ o4LE %8€

L9E 79¢€ 3293 Lz pOE 867 09T 9T 79T uonelodsUel],

%TT %0'T %17 %0'T %07 %L'T %ET %T'T %Lz

881 781 981 §o1 el 507 991 Sl 051 HeoY 39 S0URPUSHY

%E'T %TT 98T %L'T %6'T %37 %9°C %0°E %67

L61 50T 07T vZzT ST Ak 981 €1z 61 UOTIRISTUILP Y

9%8'5L %E9L %I9L %I'LL %LL %5 LL %8'LL S %PBL %380

505°9 $ 8L0°L $ 9699 $ 0TF9 $ ¥€0% $ £56°S $ 109 $ 178°s § L9g% $ uenINySUY
010¢C 6007 2007 L00T 900C SO0T ¥00T €002 7007 worun Y

SAB2 A [EISL] DUIN ISEJ
(ponpneun) puny [eiauss) - dng Jo4 wondung Lq ssanjpuadsy
ey S[00T[2] M[qnJ Apuno)) sjouroy]



901} UOHEINN] [O0T[0S :90IN0S

%0'12 61 00'1$ 62T°1 00'Z$ 00'Z$ 00'Z$ LIS'L 0102
%0°0Z L1 00'1$ 901°1 00'Z$ 00'Z$ 00'C$ 67FL 6007
%881 L1 $8°0$ LOTT SL'T$ SL'T$ SL'T$ 91S°L 800T -
%0°LT L1 $8°0% £20°1 SL1$ SL'TS SL'1$ 0ZS°L L00T
%091 €1 68°0% £63 SL'T$ SL'T$ SL'TS ISE°L 9007
%E91 €1 $8°0% TLL SLT$ SL'TS 09°'T$ 91°L S00T
%I°ST €1 $8°0% ¥Ts SL'T$ SL'T$ 09'1$ ¥26'9 00T
%SET 8 SL0$ 99% SL'T$ SL'TS 0s'1$ $98°0 €002
%TET 8 SL0$ 19 CL'TS SL'1$ 0S'1$ £20°L T00T
%E 01 8 SL0$ LOY 05'1$ 05'1% SETS 980°L 100T

Amaisg  saNs ERIAE ] Al peAteg  [00TOS [ooyos Areymoud]qd  Alle( PoAIoS

ﬁmosﬁ@ﬁ amm:«vﬂmohm pwmm.m.muhm wwmmmxmoumm &mmm o:u._uwz mvﬁﬁomﬂ—d

Pue 2204 apnly .wo .anwEsZ oo..&m Qoﬁsd ﬁuuvam mo .Hun—asz

SIBAX [BISLY Ud ], 18%]

£7 21q8L

(paipneun) weadord UONLUNN [00YIS

S[0OT3S 21[qng £IUno)) ouroy

102



PET £€T $0T S1T L0T
GET S€T S€T SET 6€T
PSL'EE  wSL'EE  pSLEE pSL'EE  PSLIEE
0£T 9T LET 80T L61
v6T $6C ¥6T v6T ¥6T
SRETY  S8ETP S8ETH S8E‘TF  S8ETH
Sty [§72% 961 90¢ 97§
LES LES LES LES LES
yo1'6y 916 P9l'6h POT'6F  POT6Y
6S¥ St LEY £S5t 09%
€LY €LY €LY €LY €LY
STTTLY §TTTY $TTTY §TT'T9 §TTTY
LYF Oty £9% 69% 6LY
LS TLS LS LS obP
PIS'0L  PISOL  PISOL PISOL  679°LS
¥s 8¢ €9 99 SL
901 9071 901 901 901
9.8°81 9.8°81 9.8°81 9.8°81 9,8°81
862 $8T 11€ 1€€ 499
98¢ 98¢ 98¢ 98¢ 98¢
91E'8F  9TIE'Sy  9IE'SY 91¢'8r  9IE’Y

0107 600T 8002 L00T 9002
¥T 3qelL

TUSTI oI
(Juapmys) Anoede))
3207 a1enbg
(8261) Arejuowaly Si4o] 10
JudT[[OXUF
(1mapms) Lroede))
193] a1enbg
(8€6T) Arejuswraly JOoIqIea[)
TuSTH[[OXUy
(yuoprys) Ayoeden
1993 2xenbg
(1961) Areyuowary Sundg aas)
TS joIuy
(yuapmys) Loede))
1097 a1enbg
(6£61) Areyuswarg uoiBurng
U1 {0 Vi
(yuapms) Anoede)y
1097 a1enbg
(866 1) AIeIUWIdE NOESUOE
el (|
(3uaptus) Anoede)
‘1997 arenbg
(1161) AIBJUOUID] ULRIUNOIA TUSE]
il [
(1meprus) KAyoede))
199] alenbg
(L£61) Areimotwaly ya9I) oeg

SJEd X [BISL QALY 158
(peyrpneun) sonsnelg essy [ede)
S[O0T[2S N[qNJ AJUno)) fouroy

103



6bP 1£5% o9pp L9% 0S¥
#8¢ ¥8¢ ¥8¢ 785 ¥8<
896°0¢ 896°0¢ 896°06 89606 896°0S
LTE LIE 90¢ 88T 6LT
£0¥ €0V €0t €0t £0%
19€CS 19¢°2S 19£°C¢ 19€°Z¢ 19€°CS
761 981 061 861 061
6LT 6LT 6LT 6LT 6LT
8sz’obr  ssTOr  ssTOv 86T 0P 8ST0F
C1t €1¥ 90t 1£%% 44’
r499 499 499 AN rASS
66T°€S  66T°CS  66TES 66T°ES  667°¢S
6S€ 0LE 0S¢ $9¢ I6€
L8E L8E L8E L8E L8E
69%°16 6916 69F°1S 69%° 1S 69Y°IS
pSE 86¢ 99¢ zs¢ L9g
9bf 9P A 9P 9P
12569 126°59 125°69 12569 17569
P €y £cy 9y St
91§ 91§ 91¢ 91§ 91§
0€9°69  0£9°69  0£9°¢9 0£9°69  0€9°¢9

0102 600T 800T L00T 9002
LA LA

LN (AU |
(yuapmis) Ayroede))
199§ a1enbg

(6561) AIRIUSWATH MITA ULEIUNOI
JuSU[OFuY
(yuopmys) Lioede)
199] a1enbg

(bE61) Arepuatmaly juesed]d JUnopW
: jusujoruy
(yuapuys) Kyoeden
193] a1enbg

(1961) Are)UswIs[H 9A0)) S,UOSEA]
JOSUI[OL0E]
(yuaprys) Lioeden)
1229 axenbg

(1961) Areywowa]g UIOH T UBULISY
JuSIjoIuS
(yuopnis) £y1oeden
199] arenbg

(#961) Areyuomalyg Ao]eA USSI)
yusw{[oIug
(yuapmys) Ayoede))
193] a1enbg

{(6561) .aﬁqvaﬂm JBATIOID) .

JUSI[oIuT]
(ruaprus) Aroede)
100] ozenbg

(1461) A1RIUDHI[g 2407 US[D)

SIBIX [BISIY AL ISB]
(payipneun) sonspe)g jassy [epde)
s[ooYd§ JMqng LHuno)) Nouroy

104




969 889 L6L LSL 0sL
908 908 908 908 908
PTRI9T  PTSI9T  #TSI9T  $TRI9T  +T8191
9L 851 108 £T8 0£8
8¢6 8¢6 8€6 8€6 8€6
LESETT  LESETT  LES'ETT  LES'CTL  LES'ETT
viv SOy vLy z6¥ S9F
909 909 909 909 909
§6S°TOT  S6S°T0T  S6S°TOT  S6S'TOT  S68°101
£09 LO9 P19 8€9 979
SLY GLY SLY $L9 GLY
TIS%L T1S%L T18°%L 1IS'%L  TIS'PL
6LY Ly vTs gEs LOS
48 rAlS TIS Z18 r4sy
€€1°29 £€1°29 £€1°29 £€1°29 £¢1°29
L9S 96 085 LSS £
91§ 91¢ 91§ 916 91§
L8E°0L  L8E°0L  LSEOL L8E0L  LSEOL
9¢¢ 8¢€¢ 6¢S 16¥ v8b
95 ¥9s 95 $9¢ ¥9$
859°8y  859'8t 8598t 8598 8S9°8P

010T 6007 800T L0O0OT 900T
P dlqe],

JuTIfjoIuUy
(3uoprus) Loede)
193] a1enbg

(0L61) SIPPIA 2pIsyMON
JETI{OXUT
(uapnys) Aoede)
19095 a1enbg

(ZL61) STPPUA A3][2A TOPPIH
JUSTI[[OXU
(ruapnys) Anoude)
193] axenbg

(9661) SIPPUA 12ATS[D
JusuIjoIny
(yuopms) Ayoede)
1991 2xenbg

(9561) 21ppIIA Sundg aae)
JUSTI[OTIY
(yueprys) Koede)
1927 a1enbg

(ZL61) Areyuaumaly Iyipuny) “g° M
JUQTI[jOXUE
(yuepmis) Anoede)
007 a1enbg

(TL61) Aryustaery 18910 Uuog
JOOT[[OIUT
(uopmys) Aioede)
193] a1enbg

(6561) A1eIUatIa]g 9A0ID 2O

SIBd X [RISLY 9AL] IS¥]
(panipneun) sonspe)g 1ssy [ende))
S[O0YRS AN Auno)) Njousey]

La)
<o
—



695°€9  69¢°€9  695°€9 695°€9  695°€9
TETYY  TETHS  TET'HS TETHS TET'PS
8SI°T LLI'L LOT'T Sl SHI‘T
056 056 056 056 0S6
0TL'69T  0TL'69T  0TL691  0OTL'69T  0TL'691
610°T 9101 0L6 800°T 766
001°1 001°1 001°1 896 896
COTLPT  €9TLPT  €9T'LPT  €9Z°TET  €9T°T€1
$SI°T POT°T 071 191°1 060°1
L6 L6 GL6 SL6 $L6
808°T07  808°T0T 808°T0T  808°T0T  808°10T
199 659 €19 865 109
SL9 SLY $L9 GLY SLY
P16°0T]  PI6°0T1  $16°0TZT +v16°0TT  #16°0TI1
LES £98 €98 GL3 SLY
ST0°'T ST0°Y S10°T STO'T S10°1
819°0ST  8I9°0ST  819°0ST  8I90ST  819°0SI
806 016 S06 768 ¥76
L38 L88 L8S L88 L88
9TO'LST  9Z0°L9T  9TO°L9T  9TO'L9T  920°L91

0107 600T 8007 LO0T 900T
pZol1qey

199J 2xenbg

(Z€61) 100428 S[PPIA TeNUI] AIUN0Y) aouE0y

1037 orxenbg

ANGQS .hmoﬁOQ&ou.H pue s10y 0T I21U2)) uoling

JUSW[[OIuY
(yueprus) Lroedeny
1097 a1enbg

(6961} USIH piAg wenyim
AWToIu
{uepms) Ajoede)
1097 arenbg

(1961) USTH opIsMON
JuawjoIug
(quapms) Aroede)
1291 a1Enbg

(Z00T) USTH Ad|[eA USPPIH
JusmoIuy
(yuapmys) Ayoede)
322 axenbg

(#961) USIH TeAUDD)
JusTI{joIIg
(yuapms) Ayroede)
192] o1Enbg

(8961) 481y Suudg ase)
yusjoIuyg
(yuapmys) Lyroede))
193] a1enbg

(8861) SIPPIA PIAG WET[II

. $.183 X [BISI] SAILY JSB]
(paypneun) sonsnels 1assy [eyde)y
-S[ooyds dMqng Apuno)) Noueoy

106



"e3ep aAneIRdod JO ANIqIssa0oe 0] anp payuasaxd viep Jo s1eak aAl ATuo)

'SUOLIPPE PUB SUONRAOURI JO J[NSaI 24 918 Ayoedes pue

2813003 a1enbs UT sasRAYOU] ‘sasaYIUAIRd UT UMOTS ST UONOMHSUOD [BULFI0 JO 1804 19JON

PET'OT  PEIOT  PEI'9T PET'OT  PEIOT
808°ST  808'ST  808°SI 808°ST  808°SI
0000 0000 0000  000°0C  000°0T
ELLTS  ELLTS  ELLTS ELLTS  ELLTS
6TL0T  6TL0T  6TL0T  6TL0T  6TL0T

0102 6002 8007 LOOT 9002
b AIqeL

"2]qe) sty ur sssodind wosLieduros 10 pasn ARJA JOJ SUROD JUSTI[OIUY
JuRWUSISSY [N JO 800 pUB ‘90O suoneIad() ‘SPI0DaI SOURINSTI THA)SAG [OOYIG :20IN0S

109] axenbg

(9v61) 28e1mD sng
1007 d1enbg

(£961) souemAUIEN
1097 a1enbg
(9007) 9snotaem
193] arenbg
(ZL61) Swplmng uonensUNUPY
jo9J a1enbg
($161) 10040g SANBWINY §00)) “H pue|oy

SIBAX TBISTY AL ISt
(panpueun) sonsnels jassy [eyde)
S[00YDS N AJUno.) NoUB0Y

107



OTHER REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

108




KPMG LLP

Suite 1710

10 8. Jeffersan Street
Roanoke, VA 24011-1331

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Members of the School Board
County of Roanoke, Virginia:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
remaining fund information of the Roanoke County Public Schools (the School System), a component unit
of the County of Roanoke, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively
comprise the School System’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 15, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School System’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School
System’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School System’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatemenis on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School System’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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KPMG ELP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, the US.
member firn of KPMG Intermnational Cooperative, a Swiss entity.




This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the school board, the audit
committee of the School System, others within the entity, and federal awarding agenciecs and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

KPMcs LLP

November 15, 2010
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Roanoke County Public Schools
Budget and Finance Office
5937 Cove Road
Roanoke, Virginia 24019

www.res.kl12.va.us
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